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0.072
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560,000
FAR CIMA 1,000
2023 31 1,141,724
10
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0.018
20
0.016
140,000
2023 31 881,415
0.10
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2023
778,990,566.73 50.25
762,500,000.00 49.19
1,541,490,566.73 99.45
8,590,261.09 0.55
1,550,080,827.82
100.00
12,416
2023
CALL ACCOUNT 2049
.200 302,700,000.00] 302,700,000.00] 302,700,000.00] 19.53
SHINSEI HSBC BANK 12 31
CALL ACCOUNT 2030
.100 191,100,000.00| 191,100,000.00| 191,100,000.00] 12.33
SHINSEI CITIBANK
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2023
.950 88,000,000.00( 87,994,820.87| 87,994,820.87| 5.68
LTD FRN 17NOV23 11 17
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2023
.425 78,000,000.00| 78,086,487.93| 78,086,487.93| 5.04
LTD FRN 22N0V23 11 22
CALL ACCOUNT 2030
.100 78,000,000.00| 78,000,000.00| 78,000,000.00| 5.03
SHINSEI ABSA BANK
NEDBANK LTD FRN 2023
.050 76,000,000.00| 76,000,000.00| 76,000,000.00] 4.90
09NOV23 11
CALL ACCOUNT 2049
NEDBANK 32 DAY .850 12 31 66,000,000.00| 66,000,000.00| 66,000,000.00] 4.26
NOTICE
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2023
.225 59,000,000.00f 59,080,100.28| 59,080,100.28| 3.81
LTD FRN O8DEC23 12
FIRSTRAND BANK LTD 2023
.870 53,000,000.00| 53,027,850.23| 53,027,850.23| 3.42
FRN 10NOV23 11 10
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2023
10. .500 46,000,000.00| 46,016,372.42| 46,016,372.42| 2.97
FRN 15AUG23 15
FIRSTRAND BANK LTD 2023
11. .870 45,000,000.00| 45,000,000.00| 45,000,000.00f 2.90
FRN 02NOV23 11
CALL ACCOUNT 2049
12. .100 39,700,000.00( 39,700,000.00f 39,700,000.00f 2.56
SHINSEI INVESTECBK 12 31
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2023
13. .425 39,000,000.00| 39,015,340.60| 39,015,340.60| 2.52
FRN 18AUG23 18
ABSA BANK LTD FRN 2023
14. .433 35,400,000.00| 35,457,609.24| 35,457,609.24| 2.29
15N0V23 11 15
FDZAR HSB 8.325PCT 2023
15. .325 32,000,000.00f 32,000,000.00f 32,000,000.00f 2.06
18AUG23 18
NEDBANK LTD FRN 2023
16. .070 28,000,000.00| 28,000,000.00| 28,000,000.00| 1.81
02NOV23 11
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2023 11
17. .950 27,000,000.00| 27,008,550.33| 27,008,550.33| 1.74
LTD FRN 16NOV23 16
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INVESTEC BANK LTD 2023

18. 8.850 27,000,000.00| 27,001,148.99| 27,001,148.99| 1.74
SA FRN 04AUG23
ABSA BANK LIMITED 2023 10

19. 10.000 23,000,000.00| 23,000,000.00f 23,000,000.00f 1.48
FRN 110CT23 11
ABSA BANK LIMITED 2023

20. 10.525 23,000,000.00| 23,000,000.00| 23,000,000.00| 1.48
FRN 15SEP23 15
FDZAR HSB 8.325PCT 2023

21. 8.325 20,000,000.00| 20,000,000.00| 20,000,000.00f 1.29
24AUG23 24
NEDBANK LTD FRN 2023

22. 9.225 20,000,000.00| 20,000,000.00f 20,000,000.00f 1.29
11SEP23 11
FDZAR HSB 8.325PCT 2023

23. 8.325 18,000,000.00| 18,000,000.00f 18,000,000.00f 1.16
25AUG23 25
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2023 11

24. 8.950 18,000,000.00| 18,000,000.00| 18,000,000.00| 1.16
LTD FRN 20NOV23 20
FDZAR HSB 8.3PCT 2023

25. 8.300 15,000,000.00| 15,000,000.00f 15,000,000.00f 0.97
11AUG23 11
FIRSTRAND BANK LTD 2023

26. 8.800 15,000,000.00| 15,000,000.00f 15,000,000.00f 0.97
FRN 10NOV23 11 10
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2023

27. 8.950 15,000,000.00| 15,000,000.00| 15,000,000.00f 0.97
LTD FRN 17NOV23 11 17
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2023

28. 8.950 15,000,000.00| 15,000,000.00f 15,000,000.00f 0.97
LTD FRN 22N0V23 11 22
ABSA BANK LIMITED 2023

29. 9.290 14,000,000.00| 14,000,565.83| 14,000,565.83] 0.90
FRN 04AUG23
NEDBANK LTD FRN 2023

30. 9.383 13,000,000.00/ 13,000,000.00f 13,000,000.00f 0.84
21N0V23 11 21

2023

2023
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2023
1,333,442,661.00 10,681 0.01 0.0801
2014
1,204,828,295.00 9,651 0.01 0.0801
2015
1,289,546,237.00 10,329 0.01 0.0801
2016
1,390,011,237.00 11,134 0.01 0.0801
2017
10
1,546,917,275.00 12,391 0.01 0.0801
2018
11
1,645,071,388.00 13,177 0.01 0.0801
2019
12
1,784,654,942.00 14,295 0.01 0.0801
2020
13
1,697,243,862.00 13,595 0.01 0.0801
2021
14
1,542,965,223.00 12,359 0.01 0.0801
(2022 )
15
1,487,294,673.00 11,913 0.01 0.0801
2023
2022 1,446,293,872.54 11,585 0.01 0.0801
1,445,342 ,246.00 11,577 0.01 0.0801
10 1,445,179,994.31 11,576 0.01 0.0801
11 1,523,715,356.42 12,205 0.01 0.0801
12 1,462,718,395.62 11,716 0.01 0.0801
2023 1,491,144,406.63 11,944 0.01 0.0801
1,477,632,667.19 11,836 0.01 0.0801
1,487,294,673.00 11,913 0.01 0.0801
1,500,799,166.80 12,021 0.01 0.0801
1,497,786,704.75 11,997 0.01 0.0801
1,551,271,870.72 12,426 0.01 0.0801
1,550,080,827.82 12,416 0.01 0.0801
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0.01

2023

2022 31 0.00004032 0.0003229632

30 0.00003846 0.0003080646

10 28 0.00004046 0.0003240846

11 30 0.00004934 0.0003952134

12 30 0.00004969 0.0003980169

2023 31 0.00005329 0.0004268529

28 0.00004828 0.0003867228

31 0.00005435 0.0004353435

28 0.00005283 0.0004231683

31 0.00006283 0.0005032683

30 0.00006042 0.0004839642

31 0.00006323 0.0005064723
0.00041763 0.0033452163
0.00050597 0.0040528197
0.00055012 0.0044064612
0.00065228 0.0052247628
10 0.00062809 0.0050310009
11 0.00060205 0.0048224205
12 0.00060288 0.0048290688
13 0.00032840 0.0026304840
14 0.00030158 0.0024156558
15 0.00049713 0.0039820113
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4.18
5.06
5.50
6.52
10 6.28
11 6.02
12 6.03
13 3.28
14 3.02
15 4.97

100
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61,091,613,655
(61,091,613,655)

50,924,460, 767
(50,924,460,767)

133,344,150,034
(133,344,150,034)

29,252,332,114
(29,252,332,114)

42,113,709,851
(42,113,709, 851)

120,482,772,297
(120,482,772,297)

40,223,998,573
(40,223,998,573)

31,752,151,342
(31,752,151,342)

128,954,619,528
(128,954,619,528)

45,160,579,574
(45,160,579,574)

35,114,107,439
(35,114,107,439)

139,001,091,663
(139,001,091,663)

10

144,873,819,277
(144,873,819,277)

129,183,287,500
(129, 183,287,500)

154,691,623,440
(154,691,623,440)

11

75,236,791,178
(75,236,791,178)

65,421,334,118
(65,421,334,118)

164,507 ,080,500
(164,507,080,500)

12

68,044,669,115
68,044,669,115

54,086,340,044
54,086,340,044

178,465,409,571
178,465,409,571

13

56,892,263,113
56,892,263,113

65,633,427,714
65,633,427,714

169,724,244,970
169,724,244,970

14

113,054,073,760
113,054,073,760

128,481,861,193
128,481,861,193

154,296,457,537
154,296,457,537

15

135,020,106,713
135,020,106,713

140,587,176,068
140,587,176,068

148,729,388,182
148,729,388,182
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PDF

58/260



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

S&P A- A3

59/260



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1933

CIMA

60/260



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

OFAC
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2010 2018

33 39

33
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AML
AML
AML
AML
infoMLRO@sumitrustgas.com
2017 DPL 2017 18
2019 30 DPL
DPL
2016 679 EU GDPR
EEA
EEA EEA
GDPR EEA

GDPR

DPL

62/260



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DPL

GDPR

EEA DPL

GDPR

GDPR
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GDPR
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2023 31
8.01
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2023 31
2023 2022
11 576,404,516 4,617,000,173 337,491,258 2,703,304,977
9,10

909,179,887 7,282,530,895 1,218,744,406 9,762,142,692
8,678,778 69,517,012 3,286,319 26,323,415
12 4,035,277 32,322,569 1,986,641 15,912,994
1,498,298,458 12,001,370,649 1,561,508,624 12,507,684,078
5,112,273 40,949,307 13,133,780 105,201,578
13,16 5,891,512 47,191,011 5,409,621 43,331,064
11,003,785 88,140,318 18,543,401 148,532,642
14 1,487,293,883 11,913,224,003 1,542,964,577 12,359,146,262
790 6,328 646 5,174
17,18 1,487,294,673 11,913,230,331 1,542,965,223 12,359,151,436
1,498,298,458 12,001,370,649 1,561,508,624 12,507,684,078

2023 31
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2023 31
2023 2022

534,321 4,279,911 291,685 2,336,397

92,693,365 742,473,854 69,329,253 555,327,317
(1,805,823) (14,464,642) (259,129) (2,075,623)

15 6,299 50,455 10,326 82,711

91,428,162 732,339,578 69,372,135 555,670,801
16,17 (170,000) (1,361,700) (170,000) (1,361,700)
16,17 (2,023,139) (16,205,343) (2,138,170) (17,126,742)
16,17 (730,406) (5,850,552) (813,127) (6,513,147)
16,17 (5,882,836) (47,121,516) (6,541,203) (52,395,036)
16 (5,904,235) (47,292,922) (6,553,338) (52,492,237)
16 (1,465,804) (11,741,090) (1,638,282) (13,122,639)
(605,382) (4,849,110) (1,274,216) (10,206, 470)
(668,488) (5,354,589) (491,200) (3,934,512)

(23,569) (188,788)

(311,490) (2,495,035) (341,674) (2,736,809)
(17,785,349) (142,460, 645) (19,961,210) (159,889, 292)

73,642,813 589,878,932 49,410,925 395,781,509
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646

73,642,813

5,174
589,878,932

1,542,965,223 12,359,151,436

73,642,813 589,878,932
1,350,201,067 10,815,110,547

(1,405,871,761)  (11,261,032,806)

18 (73,642,669)  (589,877,779) (73,642,669) (589,877,779)
2023 31 1,487,293,883  11,913,224,003 790 6,328 1,487,294,673  11,913,230,331
2021 1,697,242,451  13,504,912,033 1,411 11,302 1,697,243,862  13,594,923,335
49,410,925 395,781,509 49,410,925 395,781,509
1,130,540,738 9,055,631,311 1,130,540,738 9,055,631,311

(1,284,818,612)  (10,291,397,082) (1,284,818,612) (10,291,397,082)

18 (49,411,600)  (395,787,637) (49,411,690) (395,787,637)
2022 31 1,542,964,577  12,359,146,262 646 5,174 1,542,965,223  12,359,151,436
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2023 31
2023 2022

73,642,813 589,878,932 49,410,925 395,781,509
309,564,519 2,479,611,797 27,058,988 216,742,494
(2,048,636) (16,409,574) (158,659) (1,270,859)
481,891 3,859,947 (135,493,724)  (1,085,304,729)
381,640,587 3,056,941,102 (59,182,470) (474,051,585)
1,293,202,139  10,358,549,133 1,091,848,977 8,745,710,306
(5,392,459) (43,193,597) (456,507) (3,656,621)
(1,405,871,761)  (11,261,032,806)  (1,284,818,612) (10,291,397,082)
(8,021,507) (64,252,271) 10,172,703 81,483,351
(16,643,741) (133,316,365) (10,719,929) (85,866,631)
(142,727,329)  (1,143,245,905) (193,973,368)  (1,553,726,678)
238,913,258 1,913,695,197 (253,155,838)  (2,027,778,262)
337,491,258 2,703,304,977 590,647,096 4,731,083,239
576,404,516 4,617,000,173 337,491,258 2,703,304,977
86,655,951 694,114,168 45,738,207 366,363,038
494,629 3,961,978 277,494 2,222,727

(23,569) (188,788)
(1,805,823) (14,464 ,642) (259,129) (2,075,623)
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2023 31
uTl
2008 10 17
150 2008 12 2008 12
STeFl
2008 10 17

2023 31
2022 31
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IFRS 1ASB
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10
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2022
IFRS
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FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL
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SPPI

FVTPL
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FVTPL
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2023 31 2022 31 FVTPL
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ECL

12 ECL ECL

ECL

30

90

ECL
ECL 12 ECL 12 12
ECL ECL

ECL
ECL
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81 2020
2008 50

0.01
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IAS 32
IAS 32
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2023 31 1,487,294,673 2022
1,542,965,223
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FVTPL

2023
576,404,516 576,404,516
FVTPL 909,179,887 909,179,887
8,678,778 8,678,778
4,035,277 4,035,277
909,179,887 589,118,571 1,498,298,458
5,112,273 5,112,273
5,891,512 5,891,512
11,003,785 11,003,785

2022
337,491,258 337,491,258
FVTPL 1,218,744,406 1,218,744,406
3,286,319 3,286,319
1,986,641 1,986,641
1,218,744,406 342,764,218 1,561,508,624
13,133,780 13,133,780
5,409,621 5,409,621
18,543,401 18,543,401

2023 31 2022
45,458,994 3.06 2022 60,937,220

3.95
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2022 24 Covid-19

2023 31
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12
576,404,516 576,404,516
FVTPL

211,371,424 508,023,500 181,674,678 8,110,285 909,179,887
8,678,778 8,678,778
4,035,277 4,035,277
211,371,424 508,023,500 181,674,678 576,404,516 20,824,340 1,498,298,458
5,112,273 5,112,273
5,891,512 5,891,512
11,003,785 11,003,785

211,371,424 508,023,500 181,674,678

2022 31
12
337,491,258 337,491,258
FVTPL

316,387,441 540,116,294 356,411,201 5,829,470 1,218,744,406
3,286,319 3,286,319
1,986,641 1,986,641
316,387,441 540,116,294 356,411,201 337,491,258 11,102,430 1,561,508,624
13,133,780 13,133,780
5,409,621 5,409,621
18,543,401 18,543,401

316,387,441 540,116,294 356,411,201

2023 31 0.5
4,458,951 2022 4,225,807 0.5
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JiBar
IBOR
IBOR
IBOR
2023 31 IBOR JIBAR SA
LIBOR
2023 31 ICE 1BA
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR 12
2023 31 2022 31 FVTPL
I1BOR SA LIBOR
2023 31 2022 70

14

2023 31 2022 31
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A+

BBH

AAA
AA+
AA

2023

ECL

G.A.S.

BBH

2022 A+ BBH

BBH
S&P
2023

439,383,343 30.39

731,701,620 50.62

274,594,924 18.99
1,445,679,887 100.00

31 2022 31
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S&P
A- 2022
BBH
BBH
BBH BBH
BBH
BBH
BBH
BBH
GDC
2022
AAA 646,753,449 41.60
AA+ 608,397,161 39.14
AA 299,393,796 19.26
1,554,544,406 100.00
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2023
FVTPL
23,990,931 23,990,931
7,197,657 912,628 8,110,285
9,279,403 9,279,403
776,799,268 91,000,000 867,799,268
817,267,259 91,912,628 909,179,887
2022
FVTPL
640,086,329 640,086,329
5,829,470 5,829,470
367,753,449 367,753,449
205,075,158 205,075,158
1,218,744,406 1,218,744,406
2022 FVTPL
FVTPL
2023
576,404,516 576,404,516
8,678,778 8,678,778
4,035,277 4,035,277
576,404,516 12,714,055 589,118,571
5,112,273 5,112,273
5,891,512 5,891,512

11,003,785 11,003,785
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2022
337,491,258 337,491,258
3,286,319 3,286,319
1,986,641 1,986,641
337,491,258 5,272,960 342,764,218
13,133,780 13,133,780
5,409,621 5,409,621
18,543,401 18,543,401
11
BBH 39,904,516 2022
1,691,258 536,500,000 2022 335,800,000
12
2023 2022
62,507 22,815
3,972,770 1,963,826
4,035,277 1,986,641
13
2023 2022
16 5,026,499 5,258,691
865,013 144,412
6,518
5,891,512 5,409,621
14
2022 154,296,457,537 1,542,964,577
135,020,106,713 1,350,201,067

(140,587,176,068) (1,405,871,761)
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2023 31 148,729, 388,182 1,487,293,883
2021 169,724,244,970 1,697,242,451
113,054,073,760 1,130,540,738
(128,481,861,193) (1,284,818,612)
2022 31 154,296,457 ,537 1,542,964,577
1AS 32
21 2022 21 SBI 63 2022

64
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15 FVIPL
2023 2022
6,299 10,326
6,299 10,326
16
170,000
14,000
1,000,000,000
0.10
1,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
0.09
2,000,000,000
0.08
700,000

150
100
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0.05
0.40
0.40
0.10
2023 2022
42,923 41,992
511,322 519,090
185,660 196,499
1,485,279 1,571,994
1,493,517 1,572,028
363,077 392,959
944,721 964,129

5,026,499 5,258,691
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17
16
21 2022 21 SBI 63 2022 64 2023 31
2022 31
18
2023 31 73,642,669 2022
49,411,690 2023 31 56,998,928
2022 38,691,761
19
2023 2022
1,487,294,673 1,542,965,223
148,729,388,182 154,296,457,537
0.01 0.01
20
2023 31 2022 31
21
2023 31 674,700,490
612,101,469
22

2023 31
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Investec Bank

Absa Bank FRN 11-Apr-23
Absa Bank FRN 02-May-23
Absa Bank FRN 04-May-23
Absa Bank FRN 16-May-23
Absa Bank FRN 01-Jun-23
Absa Bank FRN 09-Jun-23
Absa Bank FRN 15-Jun-23
Absa Bank FRN 04-Aug-23

Firstrand Bank FRN 20-Apr-23
Investec Bank FRN 05-May-23
Investec Bank FRN 21-May-23
Investec Bank FRN 27-Jul-23
Investec Bank FRN 04-Aug-23
Investec Bank FRN 10-Aug-23

Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN

Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 19-Apr-23

04-May-23
19-May-23
22-May-23
24-May-23
02-Jun-23
02-Jun-23
12-Jun-23
22-Jun-23
20-Jul-23
21-Jul-23
28-Jul-23
11-Aug-23

6.525% 14-Apr-23

2023
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24,000,000

23,000,000
17,000,000
21,000,000

4,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000
23,000,000
14,000,000
48,000,000
15,000,000
71,600,000
29,000,000
16,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000
37,000,000
13,000,000
12,000,000
37,000,000
56,000,000
20,000,000
13,000,000
18,000,000
26,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

103,000,000

103/260

23,990,931 1.61
23,990,931 1.61
23,000,000 1.55
17,000,000 1.14
20,999,883 1.41

4,002,985 0.27

3,003,882 0.20

3,004,336 0.20
23,000,000 1.55
14,023,195 0.94
48,021,512 3.23
15,011,831 1.01
71,673,468 4.83
29,068,096 1.95
16,031,826 1.08

3,004,251 0.20

3,001,270 0.20
37,038,273 2.49
13,000,000 0.87
12,000,000 0.81
37,046,724 2.49
56,092,386 3.77
20,000,000 1.34
13,021,786 0.88
18,003,773 1.21
26,035,471 1.75

3,007,235 0.20

3,007,063 0.20
103,077,827 6.94
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Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 25-Apr-23 4,000,000 4,001,749 0.27
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 05-May-23 7,000,000 7,000,784 0.47
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 09-May-23 22,000,000 22,000,935 1.48
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 12-May-23 10,000,000 10,008,867 0.67
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 18-May-23 15,000,000 15,000,000 1.01
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 18-May-23 96,000,000 96,116,180 6.47
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 30-May-23 3,000,000 2,988,038 0.20
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 13-Jun-23 6,000,000 6,011,873 0.40
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 03-Aug-23 1,000,000 1,002,803 0.07
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 15-Aug-23 33,000,000 33,097,661 2.23
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 18-Aug-23 33,000,000 33,089,366 2.22
Toyota Finance Services FRN 03-Sep-23 2,300,000 2,303,939 0.15
867,799,268 58.35

South African T Bill 0% 19-Apr-23 9,310,000 9,279,403 0.62
9,279,403 0.62

8,110,285 0.55

FVTPL 909,179,887 61.13
Nedbank 32 75,000,000 75,000,000 5.04

Shinsei Citibank 205,100,000 205,100,000 13.79

Shinsei HSBC Bank 222,700,000 222,700,000 14.97

Shinsei Investec Bank 3,700,000 3,700,000 0.25

FDZAR SAN 7.30% 04-Apr-23 30,000,000 30,000,000 2.02
536,500,000 36.07
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Absa Bank FRN 05-Apr-22

Absa Bank FRN 12-Apr-22

Absa Bank 6.142% 30-May-22
Firstrand Bank 4.94% 10-May-22
Firstrand Bank 4.94% 12-May-22
Firstrand Bank 4.96% 13-Jun-22
Investec Bank 4.75125% 09-May-22
Investec Bank FRN 03-Jun-22
Investec Bank FRN 21-Jul-22
Investec Bank FRN 17-Aug-22
Nedbank FRN 12-Apr-22

Nedbank FRN 12-Apr-22

Nedbank FRN 14-Apr-22

Nedbank FRN 19-Apr-22

Nedbank FRN 25-Apr-22

Nedbank FRN 10-Jun-22

Standard Bank of South Africa FRN
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN

2022

07-Jun-22
14-Jun-22
16-Aug-22
26-Aug-22
02-Sep-22
08-Sep-22
13-Sep-22
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23,000,000
32,000,000
51,000,000

9,000,000
45,000,000

4,000,000
16,000,000

5,000,000
45,000,000
54,000,000

5,000,000
56,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000
47,000,000
60,000,000
55,000,000
12,000,000
10,000,000
40,000,000
20,000,000
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23,000,000 1.49
32,000,000 2.08
51,000,000 3.31
9,013,022 0.58
45,066,524 2.92
4,006,684 0.26
16,015,164 1.04
5,004,040 0.32
45,102,677 2.93
54,175,073 3.51
5,000,000 0.32
56,000,000 3.63
5,000,000 0.32
5,000,000 0.32
20,000,000 1.30
20,000,000 1.30
47,109,852 3.05
60,178,218 3.90
55,195,018 3.58
12,004,900 0.78
10,004,225 0.65
40,137,651 2.60
20,073,281 1.30
640,086,329 41.49




Absa Bank FRN 11-Apr-
Absa Bank FRN 15-Jun-

22
22

Firstrand Bank FRN 09-May-22

Nedbank FRN 19-Apr-22
Nedbank FRN 19-Apr-22
Nedbank FRN 04-May-22
Nedbank FRN 23-May-22
Nedbank FRN 24-May-22
Nedbank FRN 10-Jun-22

South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill
South African T-Bill

FVTPL

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

06-Apr-22
13-Apr-22
28-Apr-22
04-May-22
11-May-22
18-May-22
25-May-22
01-Jun-22
08-Jun-22
15-Jun-22
29-Jun-22
06-Jul-22
13-Jul-22
27-Jul-22
17-Aug-22
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23,000,000
23,000,000
40,000,000
20,000,000
52,000,000
19,000,000
13,000,000
12,000,000

3,000,000

16,430,000
42,810,000
16,260,000
20,340,000
36,810,000
23,160,000
35,470,000
15,850,000
17,020,000

2,230,000
22,930,000
50,310,000
39,340,000
18,970,000
12,740,000
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23,000,000 1.49
23,000,000 1.49
40,056,179 2.60
20,000,000 1.30
52,012,698 3.37
19,005,060 1.23
13,000,000 0.84
12,000,000 0.78
3,001,221 0.19
205,075,158 13.29
16,420,170 1.07
42,749,097 2.77
16,205,477 1.05
20,256,613 1.31
36,628,327 2.37
23,032,865 1.49
35,247,445 2.28
15,737,453 1.02
16,868,183 1.09
2,210,152 0.14
22,679,292 1.47
49,709,528 3.23
38,814,469 2.52
18,688,041 1.21
12,506,337 0.81
367,753,449 23.83
5,829,470 0.38
1,218,744,406 78.99
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Shinsei Absa Bank 2,200,000 2,200,000 0.14

Shinsei HSBC Bank 279,000,000 279,000,000 18.08

Shinsei Investec Bank 22,600,000 22,600,000 1.47

Shinsei Standard Bank 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.13

FDZAR SAN 4.2% 07-Apr-22 30,000,000 30,000,000 1.94
335,800,000 21.76
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF

HORIZON TRUST

Statement of Financial Position

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

As ai 31¥ March 2023

MNotes

11

Financial assets at [air valuc through profitor loss 9,10

Receivable for Equity Units issued
Receivables

Total assets

Liabilities

Payable for Equity Units redeemed
Payables

Total liabilities

Equity

Unit capital

Retained eamnings

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

12

15.16

14

17.18

2023 2022
ZAR ZAR
576,404,516 337.491,258
909,179,887  1.218,744,406
8,678,778 3,286,319
4035277 1,986,641
1,498,298.458  1,561,508,624
5112273 13,133,780
5,891,512 5.409.621
11,003,785 18,543,401
1.487.23,883  1,542,964.577
790 646
1,487,294,673  _ 1.542,965.223
1,498.298,458  1,561.508,624

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finuncial statements.

Signed on behall of the Trustee
—DocuSigeed by:

ol Onre

Date: 31% August 2023

108/260
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF

HORIZON TRUST

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31" March 2023

2023 2022
Notes FAR ZAR

Investment income
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents 534,321 291,683
Interest income from debi securitics at fair value
through profit or loss 92.693.363 69.329.253
Interest expense from financial assets not at fair
value through profit or loss (1,805,823) (259,129)
Net gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 15 6,299 10,326
Total investment income 01,428,162 69,372,135
Expenses
Trustee [ees 16,17 (170,000) (170,000
Administration and custodian fecs 16,17 (2.023.139) (2,138,170)
Investment management fees 16,17 {730,406) (813,127
Sub-Investment management fees 16.17 {5, 882.836) (6,541,203)
Distributors® fees 16 (5.904.233) (6,553,338)
Agent company [ees 16 {1,465804) (1.638.282)
Legal and printing fees (605,382) (1.274,216)
Audit fees (668,488) (491,200)
Megative yield expense (23,369} -
Orther fees and expenses (311.490) (341,674)
Total operating expenses (17,785,349) _(19,961,2100
Profit for the year 73,642,813 49,410,925

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF

HORIZON TRUST

Statement of Changes in Equity

Balance at 1* April 2022
Profit for the year

Equity Units issued
Equity Units redeemed
Distributions (Note 18)

Balance at 31* March 2023

Balance at 1* April 2021
Profit for the year

Equity Units issued
Equity Units redecmed
Distributions (Note 18)

Balance at 31* March 2022

For the year ended 31" March 2023

Unit Retained

Capital FEarnings Total

ZAR ZAR LAR

1,542,964,577 646 1,542.965,223

- 73642813 73.642.813

1,350.201.067 - 1,350,201.067
(1.405.871.7561) - (1.405.871.761)
- (73.642,669) (73.642,669)
1,487,293,883 790 1,487.294.673
1,697,242,451 1411 1,697,243,862

- 49,410,925 49,410,923

1.130,540,73% - 1,130,340,73%
(1,284.818.612) - (1.284.818.612)
- {49.411.650) (49,411,690)
1,542,964,577 646 1,542,965,223

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

10
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Cash Nows from operating activities

Profit for the vear

Changes in operating asscts and liabilities:

Decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Increase in receivables

Increase/{decrease) in payables

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from Equity Units issued

Increase in receivable for Equity Units issued

Payments for Equity Units redeemed

(Decrease)/increase in payable for Equity Units redecmed

Distributions paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalenls
{Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplementary information:
Intercst received from debt securities at fair value through

profit or loss

Interest received on cash and cash equivalents
Intcrest paid on cash and cash equivalents
Interest paid [rom financial assets not at fair value through

profit or loss

HORIZON TRUST

Statement of Cash Flows
For the vear ended 319 March 2023
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF

2023 2022
ZAR ZAR
73,642,813 49,410,925
309,564,519 27,058,988
(2.048,636) (158,659)
481,891 (135.493,724)
381,640,587 (59,182.470)
1,293,202,139 1.091,848.977
(5,392.459) (456,507)
(1,405871,761)  (1,284,818,612)
(8,021,507) 10,172,703
(16,643.741) {10.719.929)
(142.727.329) (193,973.368)
238,913,258 (253.135.838)
337,491,258 590,647,096
576,404,516 337,491,258
86,655,951 45,738.207
494,629 277,494
(23,569) -
(1,805,823) (259.129)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial slatements.
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31% March 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

South African Rand Money Market Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Horizon Trust (the
“Trust™), a Cayman Islands open-ended umbrella mutual fund, and was constituted pursuant to a Master
Trust Deed and a supplemental Trust Deed each dated 17" Qctober 2008 made between the Trusie and
UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited (the “Investment Manager™). Scparate series of Units of
the Series Trust will be issued from time to time. Unlcss redeemed earlier, each class or series of Unils
of the Series Trust will be compulscrily redeemed 130 vears from the issuc of the Series Trust's
supplemental Trust Deed for cach such class or series of Unils. The Series Trust commenced operations
on 8% December 2008, following the initial subscription day of 3" December 2008.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is Lo target retumns with reference to the STeFl 3-month
money market index, gross of [ees and taxes, measured over one year periods. The Series Trust seeks to
achieve its investment objective by investing in a range of South African money market instruments.
These assets include, but are not limited to, bankers’ acceptances, debenmures, negotiable certificates of
deposit, commercial paper. treasury bills, call accounts. fixed deposils, fixed coupon negotiable
certificates of deposit. variable coupon negotiable certificates of deposit and promissory notes, Thers
can be no assurances that the Series Trust’s investment objective will be achieved.

The Series Trust registered as a regulated mutual fund under Section 4(1)(b) of the Mutual Funds Act of
the Cayman Islands on 17* October 2008 and will comply with the provisions of that law. As at 317
March 2025 and 2022, the Series Trust had no employees. The Series Trust’s investment activities are
managed by the [nvestment Manager.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

The financial siatements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™), and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the IASE.
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial statemenis arc presented in South African Rand (“ZAR™), the functional currency of the
Series Trust.

“Functional currency” is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Series Trust
operates. If indicators of the primary economic ¢nvironment are mixed, then the Trustes uses 1ts
judgement to determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effect of
the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The majority of the Series Trust’s invesiments and
iransactions are denominated in ZAR. Investor subscriptions and redemptions arc derermined based on
Net Asset Value (“NAV™), and reccived and paid in ZAR. The expenses (including trustee fees,
administration and cuslodian fees, sub-investment management fees, diswributors’ fees and agent
company fees) are denominated and paid in ZAR. Accordingly, the Trustee has determined that the
funetional currency of the Series Trust is ZAR.
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023
{Contimeed)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with LFRS requires the Trustee to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associaled assumptions are based on
historical cxperience and various other factors that arc believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about the carrying value of
assels and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ rom
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised. Judgements made
by the Trustee in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next period are discussed in Notes 9 and
10.

Changes to significant accounting policies are described in Note 4.
BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following material
ilems:

ltems Measurement basis
Mon-derivarive financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") Fair value

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I'he accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous [inancial year.

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1% April 2022 and earlier
application is permitted; however, the Serics Trust has not carly applied these new or amended

standards in preparing these financial statements.

O those standards that are not yet elfective, none are expected to have a material impact on the Series
Trust's financial statements in the period of initial application.

NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial vear
beginning 1* April 2022 .

A number of amendments to IFRS are effective for the current financial vear, but they do not have a
material effect on the Series Trust’s financial statements.

13
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 315 March 2023
(Contired)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Serics Trust and consistently applied to all periods
presented in these financial statements are as follows:

Financial assets and financial liabilities

{1} Recogmition and inifial measuremernt

The Scrics Trust initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on the trade date,
which is the date on which the Scries Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the date on which they are
originated.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTTL,
transaclion costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

{ii} Classification and subseguent measurement

Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial asscts as measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
e it is held within a business mode! whose objeclive is 1o hold assets to collect contractual cash flows:
and
s its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prineipal
and interest (“SPPI™).

Al other financial assets of the Series T'rust are measured at FVTPL,

Business model assessment
In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held. the
Series Trust considers all of the relevant information aboul how the business is managed. including:

s the documented investment stralegy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes
whether the investment strategy focuses on caming contractual iniercst income, mainlaining 2
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets lo the duration of any
rclated liabilities or expectad cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of tho assets:
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported 1o the Series Trust's management:
the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed:

e how the Investment Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

« the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in the prior year, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial asscts to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for dcre_cngnition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's continuing recognition of the assers.
14
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31% March 2023
(Continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continucd)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
fitj Classification and subsequen! measurement (contineed)
Business model assessment {continued)
The Serics Trust has determined that it has two business models:
s Held-1o-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, receivable for Equity Units
issued and receivables. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows; and
s Other business modcl: this includes debt securities and coupon interest receivable. These financial
assets are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales
taking place.

Assessment whether contraciual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration for the lime value of money and for the eredit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular peried of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as 2 profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust consicers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
sondition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows:

— leverage features;

— prepayment and extension features,

— tarms that limit the Series Trust’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features); and

— features that modify consideration of the time value of moncy (¢.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

For a reconciliation of line ilems in the Statement of Financial Position to the categories of financial
instruments, as delined by IFRS 9, see Note 8.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not roclassified subsequent to iheir initial recognition unless the Series Trust were to
change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affceted financial asscts
would be reclassified un the first day of the first reporting peried following the change in the husiness
model.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
income and/or expense and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised in profit or loss in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Debt sccurities are included in this category.
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31% March 2023

(Contimued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

fit) Classification and subsequent megsurement (conlintied)

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
income, loreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profil or
loss. Cash and cash equivalents, receivable for Equity Units issued and receivables are included in this
categary.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest cxpense, are recognised in profit or loss. As al 31% March 2023 and 2022, the
Series Trust did not hold any financial liabilities classified at FVTPL.

Other financial liabilities are subsequenily measured at amorlised cost using the effeclive interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss. Financial ligbilities at amortised cost
include payable for Equity Units redeemed and payables.

fiit} Fair value measurement

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction berween market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access at that date. The fair value of a liability
reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for thal instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asser or liability
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active market at a mid-price, because this price
provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Series Trust uses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use ol uncbservable inputs. The
chosen valuation techmique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction. The Series Trust recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting year during which the change has ocourred.

{iv) Amortised cost measurement

The “amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount al which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured on initial recognirion minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that inilial
amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31% March 2023
(Continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Finanecial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(w) Impairment

The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECLs™) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The Series Trust measures loss allowances al an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

e financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date: and
e other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default oceurring over the expected lifc of
the asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased sipnificantly since imtial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Series Trust considers reasonable and supportable
informarion that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitativc information and analysis, based on the Series Trust’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Series Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 30 days past due.

The Series Trust considers 2 financial asset to be in default when:

e the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Series Trust in fill, without recourse by
the Series Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is held): and/or
o the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Series Trust considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the
counterparty is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment grade™.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over Lhe expected lile of a
financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or 3 shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Series Trust is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losscs are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.c. the difference between the cash flows due to the Series Trust in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Series Trust expects 1o receive).

ECLe are discounted at the effective intercst rate of the financial asset.

17

117/260



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)

Ooooooooooooooooooad
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(v} Impairment (eontinued;

Credit-impaired financial asseis

At each reporting datc, the Series Trust assesses whether financial assets carried al amorlised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when onc or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated [uture cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
o significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
# a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; andfor
» it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation.

Presemation of allowance for ECLs in the Statement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from he gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-aff
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Series Trust has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a [inancial asset in its entirety or a portion thercof.

{vi} Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel arc transferred or in
which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial assel.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset {or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecogniscd) and the consideration received
(including any new assel obtained less any new liabilily assumed) is recognised in profit or loss, Any
interest in such transferred financial asset that is created or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as
2 scparate assert or liability,

The Serics Trust may enter info transactions whereby it transfors assets recognised on its Statement of
Financial Position, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all of the risks and rewards arc retained, then the
iransferred assets are not derccognised. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards include sale and repurchase mansactions.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual oblipations are diﬁ:;hargf:d.
cancelled or have expired. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying
amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assels transferred or liabilitics
assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.
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(Contined)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and finaneial liabilities (continued)

fvif) Qffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offet and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position when and only when there 15 a legally enforceable right to oflset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master netting agreements and the related assets and
liabilities are presented gross in the Statement of Financial Position. As at 31" March 2023 and 2022,
the Series Trust was not subject to a master nefting agreement. Income and expenses are presented on 2
net basis for gains and losses from financial instruments at FYTPL.

Foreign currcncies

Ttems which are included in the Series Trust's financial statements, are measured using the currency of
the prihary ecomomic environment in which it operates (the “[functional currency”), this is ZAR.
Securities transactions arc recorded in the financial statements on the trade date of the transaction.
Where the sccurity is denominated in a currency other than ZAR, the transaction is translated into ZAR,
at the exchange rates prevailing at the close of business on the trade date. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into ZAR at the exchange rates ruling at the year end
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are stated at fair
value, are retranslated into ZAR, at the exchange rate at the date the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognised in profit or loss as net foreign
exchange pain or loss, except lor those arising on financial assets at FVTPL, which are recognised as a
component of net gain on financial assets at FVTPL and are included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Tncome for the year,

Cash and cash equivalents

G.AS. (Cayman) Limited as Trustee have appointed the Custodiae, who in tum, appointed Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH") as their sub-custodian. Cash is ultimately held at BBII as the Series
Trust's banker. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held with BBH with maturities of 3 months or
less.

Interest income on cash and eash equivalents ) )
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents is accounted for on an eflective interest rale basis. "J-’_h:lr:
the interest vield is negative the resulling expense is presented as negative yield expense within

expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This expense is accounted for on an effective
vield basis.

Interest income from deht scenrities at fair value

Interest income from debt securities, including interest income from non-derivative financial assets al
FVTPL, is recorded gross of any non-reclaimable withholding taxes suffered and is recognised in profit
or loss using the eflective interest rate method. The effective interest ratc is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated furure cash payments and reccipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument (or, when appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial instrument on
initial recognition. 19
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(Continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest income from debt securities at fair value (continued)
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Series Trust estimates futurc cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial insirument, but not futare credit losses,

Interest received or receivable, and interest paid or pavable, arc recognised in profit or loss as interest
income and interest expense, respectively.

Interest expense from financial assets not at FYTPL
Interest expense from financial assets not at FVTPL is comprised of interest on centificates of deposil.
recogniscd in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Expenses .
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Taxation

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital gains or
other Cayman Islands taxes payable by the Trust. The Trust has received an undertaking from the
Govemnor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands that in accordance with section 81 of the Trusts Act (2020
Revision) it will be exempt from such taxes for a period of fifty years from 2008 should they be enacted.
As a result, no provision for taxes has been made in the financial statements. The Series Trust may ke
subject to forcign withholding taxes on cortain interest, dividends and capital gains.

In determining the provision for taxes payable on income, the Series Trust provides for uncertain tax
positions that are more likely than not to create a tax obligation assuming inspection by the relevant lax
authorities, The amount provided is either the most likely amount payable or the expected valuc of the
pavable amount, whichever approach provides a berter prediction in the specific circumstances.

Distribution policy

The Trustee. on the advice of the Investment Manager, may declare distributions in respect of the Series
Trust on each dealing day. Distributions shall only be declared when the WAV per Unit exceeds ZAR
0.01 {the “threshold amount™) on such dealing day. The amount available for distibution shall be
determined by the Administrator on each dealing day by calculating the NAV per Unit. The amount per
Unit to be distributed from the Series Trust shall be such sum as may be required to reduce the NAV per
Unit on the relevant dealing day to an amount cqual to the threshold amount. The distributions shall be
desmed to have been declared immediately priar to the close of business in the last relevant market to
close on each dealing day, or such other time on such day or days as the Investment Manager, afler
consultation with the Trustee, may from time to time delermine. The amount to be distributed per Unit
shall be calculated and rounded to 8 decimal places; the aggregale amount paid to Unitholders will be
rounded to the nearest ZAR0.01. All rounding adjustments will accrue to the Series Trust. Every
Unitholder in the Series Trust shall have the right to participate in such amount of the distribution
available to the Series Trust pro rata to the number of Units held by such Unitholder.
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{Continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Distribution policy (continued)

Distributions will acerue daily with effect from the date on which subseription monies are received from
the investor, therefore Unitholders will be entitled to the distribution declared on the settlement date. On
the distribution reinvestment date all distributions declared, acerued and not yet paid up to and including
the distribution reinvestment date (after deduction of withholding and other taxes required to be paid (if
any) in the country in which the Unitholder resides), are automatically reinvested against the issue of
further Units at the NAV per Unit determined on the distribution reinvestment date. Settlement of the
subscription monies due on the reinvestment will be effected on the following dealing day. No
preliminary charge shall be payable on the re-investment of distributions. Mo fractional Units will be
issued. Unitholders requesting the repurchase of Units on or prior o the distribution reinvestment date
will be paid their distributions relating to those Units 1o be repurchased which have been declared up to
and including the dealing day on which the Units are repurchased, in cash together with the repurchase
proceeds. Unitholders requesting the repurchase of Units on the last dealing day of 2 month shall have
their Units (including a portion of the Units issued on the preceding distribution reinvestment date out of
distributions relating to the Units repurchased at the request of a Unitholder) repurchased and the
repurchase proceeds shall be paid together with the distributions declared on the relevant dealing day.

Distributions payable are recognised in the Statement of Changes in Equily when they are declared.

Equity Units

The Serics Trust issues Lquity Units, which are redeemable at each Unitholder’s option and are
classified as equity in accordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments - Prasentation (“1AS 32™). Should
the Equity Units' terms or condilions change such thal they do not comply with the strict criteria
contained in TAS 32, the Equity Units would be reclassified to 2 [inancial liability from the date the
instrument ceases o moet the criteria. The financial liahility would be measured at the instrument’s fair
wvalue at the date of reclassification. Equity Units can be put back to the Series Trust for cash cqual to a
proportionate share of the Series Trust’s trading NAV calculated in accordance with the Series Trust’s
Appendix to the Trust’s Offering Memorandum.

A puttable financial instrument that includes a contractual ohligation for the Series Trust to repurchase
or redeem that instrument for cash or another financial asset is classified as equity if it meets all of the
conditions below:

« it entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the Series Trust's Net Assets in the event of the Series
Trust's liquidation;

. itis in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments;

. all financial instruments in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other ¢lasses of
instriments have identical fearures;

- apart from the contracrual obligation for the Serics Trust to repurchase or redeem the instrument
for cash or another financial asset, the instrument does not include any other features that would
require classification as a liability, and

+  the total expected cash flows attributable to the instrument over its life are based substantially on
the profit or loss, the change in the recognised Net Assels or the change in the fair value of the
recognised and unrecognised Net Assets of the Series Trusl over the life of the instrument.
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(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Equity Units (continued)

The Series Trust's one class of Units in issue meet these conditions and are classified as equity.

As at 319 March 2023, the Series Trust had ZAR1.487,204,675 (2022: ZAR1.542.965,223) of Net Asscts

classified as equity.

CLASSTFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at FVTPL
Receivable for Equity Units issued
Receivables

Payable for Equity Units redesmed
Payables

2022

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at FVTPL
Receivable for Equity Units issued
Receivables

Payable for Equity Units redeemed
Fayables

Financial Financial

Mandatorily assets at liabilities at
at FVTPL amortised eost amortised cost Total
ZAR ZAR FAR LAR
- 576.404.516 - 576,404,516
909,179,887 - - 909,179,287
: 3,478,778 : 8.678.778
- 4,035,277 - 4 035,277
909,179,887 589,118,371 - 1498298458
> - 2112273 5112273
- - 5,891,512 5.891,512
. : 11,003,785 11,003,785
- 337,491,258 - 337,491,258
1,218,744 406 - - 1,218,744.4206
- 3286319 - 3,286,319
- 1,986,641 - 1,986,641
1.218,744.406 342,764,218 - 1,561,508.624
- - 13.133.780 13,133,780
- - 5.400.621 5.409.621
i - 18,543,401 18,543,401
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{Continued)

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The main risks arising from the Series Trust’s financial instruments can be summarised as follows:

Market Risk

Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of [inancial investments held. It represents the
potential loss the Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price
movements. Market risk comprises three types of risk: price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk.

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will flucruate as a result of changes in the
market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk). whether caused by
factors specific to an individual investment. or its issuer, or faclers affecting all instruments traded in the
market, Price risk is managed by the Investment Manager constructing a diversified portiolio of
instruments in terms of duration, credit risk and product.

As at 31% March 2023, if the price of cach investment had increased by 5% (2022: 3%) with all other
variables held constant, there would have been an increasc in total equity of ZARAS 458,994 (3.08% of
NAV) (2022: ZAR60,937,220 (3.95% of NAV)). A decrease by 3% with all other variables held
consiant, would result in an equal but opposite effect on total equity to the figures shown above. I is
important to note that this form of sensitivily analysis may be unreprescntative of the risks inherent in
the financial instruments held by the Series Trust [rom time to time as the measure is 2 point=-in=time
calculation, reflecting positions as recorded at that date, which do not necessarily reflect the risk
position held at any other time.

On 24® February 2022, Russia launched a military invasion into Ukraine. Russia’s invasion of Ukraine
carries significant risks for a world economy that has yet to fully recover from the impacts of the global
Covid-19 pandemic. The ultimate impacts on the Series Trust of the consequential geo-political
instability, financial market volatility. inflation and imposition of sanctions on Russia, and of an
environment of rising interest rates, are not possible to forecast at this time.

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that as cenain assets of the Series Trust may be invested in sceurities and other
investments denominated in foreign currencies, the value of such assets may be affected favourably or
unfavourably by fluctuations in currency rates.

Since all of the investments and cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the base currency of the
Series Trust, the Statememt of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income will not be
significantly affected by currency movements and as a result. a scnsitivity analysis has not becn

performed.

Interest Ratc Risk :
Intcrest rate risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust might sufler due to adverse

movements in relevant interest rates. The value of fixed income assets may change based on intcrest rate
fluctuations.
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{Continued)

0, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (eontinued)

Market Risk {continued)

Interest Rate Risk (continuwed)

Typically, when interest rates increase, the valuc of fixed income assets tends to depreciate. Conversely,
when interest rates decrease, the value of fixed income assets tend to appreciate. The degree of the change of
the value of the fixed income asset will depend on a number of factors, including the maturity and conditions
of issuance of the fixed income assel, Interest rate fluctuations may also affect the value and pricing of
derivative instruments that are purchased by the Investment Manager for the account of the Series Trust.

The table below summariscs the Series Trust's exposure to interest rate risks. It includes the Series Trust's
assels and trading liabilities at fair values, catcgorised by the earlier of contraciual re-pricing or maturity
dates as at 31% March 2023

Fived
Less than 1-3 4-12 interest Mon-intcrest

1 month maonths months rate bearing Total
Assets FAR AR TAR ZAR ZAR ZAaR
Cash and cash
equivalents - - - 576,404,516 - 576404516
Financial assets at
FVTFL 211,571.424 308,023,500 181,674,678 - 3,110,283 209,179,887
Receivable for
Equity Units issued - = - - B6TRTTE 8,678,778
Reccivables - - - - 4035277 4035277
Total assets 211,371,424 508,023,500 181,674,678 576,404,516 20,824,340 1,498.298,458
Liabilities
Payable for Equity
Uhits redeemed - - - - 3. 112273 5112275
Payables - - - - 5891512 5.891.512
Total liabilities - - - - 11,003,785 11,003,785
Total Interest
Sensitivity Gap 211,371,424 508,023,500 181 GT4.678 NIA N/A MN/A
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Continued)
9, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS {continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk (continued)

The table below summarises the Series Trust's exposure 1o intercst rate risks. It includes the Series Trust’s
assets and trading liabilities at fair values, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity

dates as at 31% March 2022:
Fixed
Less than 13 4-12 interest NMNon-interest

1 month months months rate Bearing Total
Assets ZAR ZAR ZAR TAR ZAR ZAR
Cash and cash
equivalents - - - 337491258 - 337491258
Financial assels
at FVTPL. 316387441 540,116,294 356.411.201 - 5820470 1.218.744.406
Receivable for
Equity Units
issued - - - - 3286519 3,286,319
Receivables - - - - 1,986,641 1.986.641
Total assets 316,387,441 540,116,294 356,411,201 337491258 11,102,430 1,561.508,624
Liabilities
Pavable for
Equity Units
redeemed - - - - 13,133,780 13,135,780
Payables - - - - 5400621 5409,621
Total liabilities - - - - 18543401 18,543,401
Total Interest
Sensitivity Gap 316,337,441 540,116.294 356,411,201 NIA NFA N/A

Rased on the financial instruments held at 31 March 2023, if the lloating interest rate curve increased by
0.5% for a full year then the effect on total equity, with all other variables remaining constant, would
amount to a gain of ZAR4.458,951 (2022: ZAR4,225.807). A decrease by 0.5% would result in an equal
hut opposite effect, on the basis that all other variables remain constant. It is important to note that this form
of sensitivity analysis may be unrcpresentative of the risks inherent in the financial instruments held by the
Series Trust as the measure is a point-in-time calculation, reflecting positions as recorded ar that date,
which do not necessarily reflect the risk position held at any other time.

The Benchmark rate for intercst receipts for the floating rate investments is based on the 3 month
Johannesburg Interbank Agreed Rate (*JiBar”) for the Seres Trust.
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Interest i tin

A fundamental reform of major intercst rate benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including the
replacement of some interbank offered rates (IBORs) with alternative nearly risk-free rates (referred to
as ‘TBOR reform™). The Series Trust has exposure to TBORs on its financial instruments that will be
replaced or reformed as part of these market wide initiatives. The Series Irust’s main IBOR exposure at
31 March 2023 was indexed to JIBAR (“SA LIBOR™).

As of 317 March 2023, ICE Benchmark Administration (TBA) has ceased publication of the GBP, EUR,
CHF and JPY tenors, as well as the 1 week and 2 month USD LIBOR tenors, and will cease publication
of the other USD LIBOR tenors (overnight, 1 month, 3 months, 6 months and 12 months) at the end of
June 2025.

The Series Trust’s IBOR exposures in financial assets and financial liabilitics at FVTPL as at 31* March
2023 and 2022, were Certificates of Deposit and Variable Rate NCDs indexed to SA LIBOR. These
securities represent 0% of the Series Trust’s portfolio as at 31% March 2023 (2022: 7U%%).

Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Series Trust may not be able to rapidly adjust the size of its mvestment
position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a reasonable price.

Funds are invesled in assets which are expected to be readilv realisable and overnight cash balanccs of
around 5% of the net value of equity are normally retained, which are increased for known cutflows and
during market disruption. In times of markel disruption realising assets may become more difficult.
When this is observed it is monitored by the Investment Manager, and where deemed necessary by the
Investment Manager, the Investment Manager will endeavour to have shorter maturity dates and 10
increase overnight cash. Please see Note 14 for details of redemption terms and conditions for
Unitholders.

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the majority of assels and liabilities of the Series Trust held
as at 31% March 2023 and 2022 can be liguidated within one month in normal circumstances. All
liabilities of the Serics Trust, and the total equity of the Series Trust which is all redesmable at the
option of Unitholders, have a contractual maturity of less than one month.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is measured by the loss the Series Trust would record if its counterparties failed to perform
pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust. The Serics Trust will be exposed 10 credit
risk on parties with whom it rades and will also bear the risk of senlement default. The Series Trust
aims to select only established counterparties that have sufficient experience, knowledge and
creditworthiness. All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved
brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery ol sccurities sold is only made once the
broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been reccived by
the broker.
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31% March 2023

{Continued)
9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)
All of the cash held on overnight deposit is held with a carefully selected list of banks. Bankruptey or
insolvency by a bank may cause the Series Trust's rights with respect to the cash held on deposit to be

delayed or limited. The Investment Manager monitors the credit rating of this list, as reported by S&FP
Global and Moody's.

G.AS. (Cayman) Limited as Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank. Limited (London
Branch) as its custodian (the “Custodian™), which has 2 Fitch long term rating of A- (2022: A-)
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) has, in turn, appointed BBH, as their sub-
custodian. Both the cash and securities are ullimately held with BBH, with cash being held with BBH as
banker. All of the investments and cash of the Series Trust are held with BBH at year end, who has a
Fitch credit rating of A+ (2022: A+). Bankruptey or insolvency of BBH may cause the Series Trust's
rights with respect to its investments in debt securities held by the bank to be delayed or limited. The
Series Trust's securitics are maintained by the Custodian in segregated accounts at BBH, thus in the
event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Custodian or BBH, the Series Trust’s securities are segregated.
The Series Trust will, however, be exposed to the credit risk of BBH, or any depository used by the
Custodian or BBH, in relation to the Series Trust's cash. In the event of the insolvency or bankruptey off
BBH ar a depository, the Scries Trust will be treated as a general creditor of BBH or a depository in
relation to cash holdings of the Series Trust. An investment universe which lists all the rating elipible
securities that the Scries Trust has traded in is maintained, and monitored daily by the Invesiment
Manager to record rating changes by Fitch (national rating scale). Any rating changes are reported to the
[nvestment Manager.

The table below shows the distribution of fixed deposits and instruments at FVTPL by eredit rating as
percentage of the value of investments. The credit rating i determined by the Investment Manager, on
an instrument by instrument basis, based on reference to four credit rating agencics, being Fitch, S&P
Global, Moody's. and GDC in this sequence.

2023 ZAR % 2022 ZAR %
AAA 439,383,343 3039 AAA 646,733 449 41.60
AAt 731,701,620 50.62 AA+ 608,397,161 39.14
AA 274,504,924 1899 AA 299,393,796 13.26

1,445,679,887 100.00 1,554,544,406 100.00

All gains and losses from tading in investments for the yecars ended 31% March 2023 and 2022 are
included in profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

All the assets held by the Scries Trust are exposed to credit risk and the carrying value of these assets in
the Statement of Financial Position represents the maximum exposure to credit risk at the year end.
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended 3 1% March 2023
(Continued)

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

Amounts arising from ECL

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents, receivable [or Equity Units issued and receivables has been
measured on a 12-month expecled loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposurces. The
Series Trust considers that these exposures have low credit risk based on the extemnal credit ratings of
the counterparties,

The Scries Trust monitars changes in credit risk on these expesures by tracking published external
credit ratings of the counterparties. To determine whether published ratings remain up to date and to
assees whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk at the reporting date that has not been
reflecied in the published ratings, the Series Trust supplements this by reviewing changes in bond
vields, credit default swap prices together with available press and regulatory information about
counterpartics.

12-month and lifetime probabilities of delault are based on publically available historical market data
published by Moody's for each credit rating. Loss given default parameters generally reflecl an assumed
recovery rate of 50%. However, if the asset were credit-impaired, then the estimate of loss would be
based on a specific assessment of expected cash shortfalls and on the original effective interest rate.

The amount of impairment allowance on cash and cash equivalents, receivable for Equity Units issued
and receivables is considercd trivial as at 31% March 2023 and 2022,

10. FAIR YALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table averleaf shows financial instruments recognised at fair value analysed between those whose
fair value is based on:

e Level 1: Quoted price (Unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument:

« TLevel 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, cither directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted
market prices in active markets for similar instruments, guoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that arc not considered active; or other valuation techniques for which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly abservable from market data; and

o Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all
instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and
the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This catcgory
includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions arc required to reflect differences between
the instruments. The Series Trust did not hold any instruments in this category.

2%
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31* March 2023

{Contimed)

10. FAIR YALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

2023

Financial assets at FVTPL
(including interest receivable)
Certificates of Deposit

Coupon Interest Receivable on
Variable Rate NCDs
Discounted Debt

VYariahle Rate NCDs

2022

Financial assets at FVTPL
{including interest receivable)
Certilicates of Deposit

Coupon Interest Receivable on
Varizble Rate NCDs
Discounted Debt

Variable Rate NCDs

Level 1 Level2  Level3 Total
ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR
23.990.931 - - 23,990,931
7,197.657 912,628 - 8.110,285
9,279,403 - . 9,279,403
776.799.268 91,000,000 p 867.799.268
817,267,259 91,912,628 . 909.179.387
- 640,086,329 - 640,086,329

- 5,829,470 - 5,829,470

- 367,753,449 - 367,753,449

. __205,075.158 - 205,075.158

- _1,218,744,406 . _1218,744.406

There were no transiers between the levels during the year (2022: None). The [inancial instruments not
measured at EVTPL are short-term finaneial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts

approximate fair value,

The table below and overleaf sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at FVTPL
and analyses them by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurcment is

categorised:

2023

Assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivable for Equity Unils issucd
Receivables

Liabilitics
Payable for Equity Units redeemed
Pavables

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TAR ZAR ZAR ZAR
576404510 - - 576,404,516
& B.678,778 - B.678.778
- 4035277 - 4033277
576,404,516 12,714,055 - 559,118,571
- 5,112,273 - 5112273
- 5,801,512 - 5,801,512
d 11,003,785 - 11,003,785
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31% March 2023
(Cantinued)

10. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2022 ZAR ZAR FAR TAR
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 337,491,258 - - 337.49],238
Receivable [or Equity Units issued - 3,286,319 - 3286319
Receivahbles - 1986641 - 1.986.641
337,491,258 5,272,960 - 342764218
Liabilities
Payable for Equity Units redeemed - 13,133,780 - 13,133,780
Payables - 5.409,621 - 5,409,621
- 18,543,401 - 18,543,401

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents, comprises cash held with maturitics of 3 months or less with BBEH of the
amount ZAR39.904,516 (2022: ZARI1691258) and daposils of ZARS36.500,000 (2022:
ZAR3335.800,000).

12. RECEIVAELES

2023 2022

LAR ZAR

Bank interest receivable 62,507 22,813

Deposits (less than 3 months) receivable 3972770 1,963 836

4,035,277 1,986,641

13. PAYABLES

2023 2022

MNote ZAR ZAR

Feas pavable 16 5026499 5,238.691

Distributions payable 865,013 144,412

Other payables - 6.518
5891512 5409621
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31% March 2023

(Continued)
14. EQUITY UNIT CAPITAL

Number of Units Tnit Capital

ZAR

Balance a1 1% April 2022 154,296,457,337 1.542.964.577
Equity Units issued 135,020,106,713 1,350,201,067
Equity Units redeemed (140,587,176,068)  (1.405,871,761)
Balance at 31* March 2023 148,729,388,152 1.487,293,833

Balance at 1¥ April 2021 169.724.244.970 1,697,242,451
Equity Units issued 113,054,073,760 1.130,540,738
Equity Units redeemed (128.481,861,193)  (1,284.818.612)
Balance at 31* March 2022 154,296,457,537 1,542.964,577

Only vne class of Units, ZAR Units, are in issue. The Units are available for subscription on any dealing
dav at the applicable purchase price. The Serics Trust issues redeemable Units, which arc redeemable at
each Unitholder's option but are classified as financial equity in accordance with IAS 32. Redeemable
Units can be put back to the Scries Trust at every dealing day for cash equal to a proportionate Unit of
the Series Trust’s NAV. The redeemable unit is carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the
Statement of Financial Position date if a Unitholder exercises the right 1o put the Unit back to the Series
Trust.

Equity Units are redeemable daily subject to the submission of a repurchase notice by no later than 8am
(Dublin time) on the relevan! dealing day or such other deadline as the Investment Manager may
determine, failing which the repurchase request will be held over until the following dealing day and
Units will be redeemed at the repurchase price applicable for that dealing day.

The Series Trust considers Unit Capital to be the capital of the Series Trust. Its ohjective in managing
capital is the investment objective described in Note 1. The Series Trust is not subject to any imposed
external regulatory capital requirements. Rakuten Securities, Inc. owns 21% (2022: 21%) and SBl
Securities Co. Ltd owns 63% (2022: 64%) of the Units issued by the Series Trust.

15. NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FYTFL

2023 2022
ZAR ZAR

Financial assets and liabilitics
Met realised gain from investments 6,299 10,526
6,299 10,326
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended 31% March 2023
{Continved)

16. FEES AND EXPENSES

Trusiee fees
The Trustee receives out of the asscts of the Series Trust a fixed fee of ZARIT0O000 per annum,
accruing daily and payable quarterly in arrears.

The Trustee also receives an account opening fee of ZAR14,000 for external cash accounts out of the
assets of the Series Trust. In addition, the Trustee is entilled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the
Series Trust for all sovernment or similar fees, charges, taxes and duties levied on or in respect of the
Series Trust as may be properly incurred, as well as all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred. The
Trustee is also cntitled to receive a termination fec upon the termination of the Serics Trust as agreed
between the Trustee and the Investment Manager.

Administration and custodian {ees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust an administration fee at the rate of:

1. 0.10% per annum of that part of the NAV calculated on the valuation point on each valuation day
which is equal to or less than ZAR1,000.000,000;

2. 0.09% per annum of that part of the NAV calculated on the valuation point on cach valuation day
which is greater than ZAR1,000,000.000 and equal to or less than ZAR2.000,000,000;

3, 0.08% per annum of that part of the NAV calculated on the valuation peint on cach valuation day
which is greater than ZAR2,000,000,000.

Subject to a minimum fee of ZART00,000 per annum, prorated on ach valuation day, and payable
quarterly in arrears in respect of its provision of administrative services to the Series Trust. The fees of
the Custodian are borme by the Administrator. The Administrator also receives a fee of ZARI 50 for each
security settlement instruction in respect of the Series Trust and ZARI00 for cash movements in and out
of the Series Trust, The Administrator is als entitled to receive additionsl fees out of Lhe assets of the
Series Trust from time to time as set out in the Administration Agreement in circumstances including,
but not limited to: amendments to the Offering Memorandum, change of service providers to the Series
Trust, chanpes to the structure of the Series Trust and termination of the Series Trust.

Investment management fees

The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trusta fee of up o 0.05% per annum of
the NAV. accruing daily and payable quarterly in arrears. The Investment Manager is also entitled to be
reimbursed out of the assets of the Series Trust for out-of-pockel cxpenses reasonably incurred in
connection with the services provided by the Investment Manager.

Sub-Investment management foes

The Sub-Investment Manager receives out of the asscts of the Series Trust a fee of up to 0.40% per
annum of the NAV. accruing daily and payable quarterly in arrears. The Sub-Investment Manager is
also entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the Scries Trust for out-of-pocket expenses reasonably
incurred in connection with the services provided by the Sub-Investment Manager.
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(Continued)

16. FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

Distributors’ fees

The Distributors receive out of the assets of the Serics Trust a fee of up to 0.40% per annum of that part
of the NAV atributable 1o Units for which each Distributor procured subscribers, aceruing daily and
payable quarterly in arrears.

Agent company fecs
The Agent company reccives out of the assets of the Series Trusta fee of up to 0.10% per annum of the
MAV, aceruing daily and pavable quarterly in arrears.

Other fees and expenses

Additional fees and expenses attributable to the Series Trust are also pavable oul of the assets of the
Series Trust, including, without limitation, audit fees, legal expenses, consultancy fees. transaction fees,
advertising expenses, printing expenses and any other ongoing out of pocket fees and expenses. The
Series Trust bears any applicable taxes.

The fees payable are as [ollows:

2023 2022

LAR FAR
Trustee foes 42,923 41.992
Administration and custodian fees 511,322 519.090
[nvestment management [ees 185,660 196,499
Sub-Investment management fees 1.485279 1,571,994
Distributors® fees 1,493,517 1,572,028
Agent company fees 363,077 392,959
Other fees and expenses 544,721 _ 964,129

5026499 5258691
17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to contral the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee,
Adminisirator and Custodian are all related by virtue of common control. The Trustee, Investment
Manager, Sub-Investment Manager. Custodian and related companies are deemed to be related to the
Series Trust. Fees incurred with related parties during the year are disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Amounts payable to related partics at the year end are disclosed in Note 16.
Rakuten Securities, Inc. owns 21% (2022: 21%) and SR Securitics Co. Lid owns 63% (2022: 64%) of
the Units issued by the Series Trust As al 31% March 2023 and 2022, the Series Trust has no

employces.
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

{Continued)
DISTRIBUTIONS
The dividend declared to Unitholders for the year ended 31% March 20253 is ZART73,642,669 (2022:

ZAR49.411.690). Dividends reinvested for the year ended 31% March 2023 amounted to ZARS56,998.928
(2022: ZAR38.691.761).

NAY HISTORY

2023 2022
NAV per financial statcments ZAR1.487.294,673  ZARL.542,965223
Number of Equity Units in issue per financial statements 148.729.388.182 154.296.457,537
MAV per Equity Unit per financial statements ZARO.OL ZARDM
CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENTS AND CHARGES

There were no other contingencies, commitments or charges as at 31% March 2023 or 2022,
EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR END

Subsequent to the year end and up to 317 August 2023, there were ZARG74,700,490 subscriptions into
the Series Trust and ZAR612,101,469 redemptions from the Series Trust.

There were no other events subsequent to the year end which require disclosure or amendment to the
financial statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Trustee approved the financial statements on 31% August 2023,
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Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)
As at 31 Mareh 2023
Fair

Mominal Value % of
Certificates of Deposit Holding ZAR  NAV
South Africa
Investec Bank 6.525% 14-Apr-23 24,000,000 23,990,931 1.61
Total Certificates of Deposit ' 23,990,931 1.61
Variable Rate NCDs
South Africa
Absa Bank FEN 11-Apr-23 23.000.000 23,000,000 1.35
Ahsa Bank FEN 02-May-23 17,000,000 17,000,000 1.14
Albsa Bank FRN 04-May-23 21,000,000 20,999 883 141
Absa Bank FRN 16-May-23 4,000,000 4,002 985 0.27
Absa Bank FRN 01-Jun-23 3,000,000 3,003,882 0.20
Absa Bank FRN 09-Jun-23 3.000.000 3,004,336 0.20
Absa Bank FEN 15-Jun-23 23,000,000 23,000,000 1.55
Ahbsa Bank FRN 04-Aug-23 14,000,000 14,023,195 0.54
Firstrand Bank FRN 20-Apr-23 48,000,000 48,021,512 3.23
Investee Bank FRM 03-May-23 15,000,000 15,011,831 1.01
Investe: Bank FREN 21-May-23 71,600,000 71.673,468 4.83
Investec Bank FRN 27-Tul-23 29,000,000 29,068,096 1.93
Investec Bank FRY 04-Aug-23 16,000,000 16,031,826 1.08
Investec Bank FRN 10-Aug-23 3,000,000 3,004,251 0.20
Medbank FRN 04-May-23 3,000,000 3,001,270 0.20
Nedbank FRN 19-May-23 37,000,000 37.038.273 249
Nedbank FRMN 22-May-23 13,000,000 13,000,000 0.87
Nedhank FRM 24-May-23 12,000,000 12,000,000 0.81
Nedbank FRN 02-Jun-23 37,000,000 37.046,724 249
Wedbank FRN 02-Jun-23 56.000.000 56,002,386 an
Medbank FRN 12-Jun-23 20,000,000 20,000,000 1.54
Medbank FRN 22-Jun-23 13,000,000 13,021.786 0.88
MNedbank FEN 20-]ul-23 18.000,000 18,003,773 1.21
Nedbank FRN 21-Jul-23 26,000,000 26,035,471 1.75
Nedbank FRN 28-Jul-23 3.000.000 3,007,235 0.20
Nedbank FRN 11-Aug-23 3,000,000 3,007,063 0.20
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 19-Apr-23 103,000,000 103,077.827 6.94
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 25-Apr-23 4,000,000 4,001,749 0.27
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 05-May-23 7.000.000 7.000.784 0.47

Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 09-May-23 22,000,000 22,000,935 1.48
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)

As at 31 March 2023
(Cantinued)
Fair

MNominal Value % of
Variable Rate NCDs (continued) Holding ZAR NAV
South Africa (continued)
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 12-May-23 10,000,000 10,008,867 0.67
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 18-May-23 15,000,000 15,000,000 1.01
Standard Bank of South Africa FRIN 18-May-23 96,000,000 95,116,180 6.47
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 30-May-23 3,000,000 2.588.,058 0.20
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 13-Jun-23 6,000,000 6,011.873 0.40
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 03-Aug-23 1,000,000 1,002,803 0.07
Standard Bank of South Alrica FRN 13-Aug-23 33,000,000 33 0897.661 2.23
Siandard Bank of South Africa FRN 18-Aug-23 33,000,000 33,089,368 222
Toyota Finance Services FRN 03-Sep-23 2,300,000 2.303.93% Q.15
Total Variable Rate NCDs 867,799,268 58.35
Discounted Debt
Sputh Africa
South African T Bill 0% 19-Apr-23 9,310,000 0.279.403 0.62
Total Discounted Debt 9,279,403 0.62
Coupon interest receivable 8,110,285 0.55
Financial assets at FYTPL 909,179,887 61.13
Deposits (less than 3 months)
South Africa
Call Account Nedbank 32 Day notice 75.000,000 75,000,000 5.04
Call Account Shinsei Citibank 205,100,000 205,100,000 13.79
Call Account Shinsei HSBC Bank 222,700,000 222,700,000 14.97
Call Account Shinsei Investce Bank 3,700,000 3,700,000 0.25
FDZAR SAN 7.30% 04-Apr-23 30,000,000 30,000,000 202

Total Deposits (less than 3 months) 536,500,000 36.07
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)
As ar 31% March 2022

Fair

Nominal Value %o of
Certificates of Deposit Holding ZAR NAY
South Africa
Absea Bank FEN 05-Apr-22 3.000.000 23,000,000 1.49
Absa Bank FRN 12-Apr-22 32,000,000 32,000,000 2.08
Absa Bank 6.142% 30-May-22 51,000,000 51,000,000 3.51
Firstrand Bank 4.94% 10-May-22 9,000,000 9,013,022 (.58
Firstrand Bank 4.94% 12-May-22 435,000,000 43,066,524 2.92
Tirstrund Bank 4.96% 13-Jun-22 4,000,000 4,006,684 0.26
Investee Bank 4.75125% 09-May-22 16,000.000 16,015,164 1.04
Investec Bank FRN 03-Jun-22 | 5,000,000 5,004,040 032
Invesiec Bank FRN 21-Jul-22 435,000,000 43,102,677 2.93
Investec Bank FRN 17-Aug-22 54,000,000 54,175,073 3.31
Nedbank FRN 12-Apr-22 5,000,000 5.000,000 0.32
Wedbank FRN 12-Apr-22 56,000,000 56,000,000 363
Nedbank FEN 14-Apr-22 5.000.000 3.000,000 0.32
Nedbank FRN 19-Apr-22 5,000,000 5.000,000 032
Nedhank FRN 25-Apr-22 20,000,000 20,000,000 1.30
Wedbank FRN 10-Jun-22 20,000,000 20,000,000 1.30
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 07-Jun-22 47,000,000 47,109,852 3.05
Standard Bank of South Alrica FRN 14-Jun-22 60,000,000 60,178,218 3.90
$tandard Bank of South Africa FRN 16-Aug-22 55,000,000 55,195,018 3.58
Siandard Bank of South Africa FRN 26-Aug-22 12,000,000 12,004,900 0.78
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 02-5ep-22 10,000,000 10,004,225 0.65
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 08-Sep-22 40,000,000 40,137.651 2.60
$tandard Bank of South Africa FRN 13-Sep-22 © 20,000,000 20,073,281 1.30

Total Certificates of Deposit : 640,086,329 41.49
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Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)
As at 31 March 2022

{Cominued)
Fair

Nominal Valoe % of
Variahle Rate NCDs Holding ZAR NAV
South Africa
Absa Bank FRN 11-Apr-22 23,000,000 23,000,000 1.49
Absa Bank FEN | 3-Jun-22 23,000,000 23 000,000 1.49
Firstrand Bank FEN 09-May-22 40,000,000 40,056,179 2.60
Medbank FRN 18-Apr-22 20,000,000 20,000,000 1.30
Nedbank FRN 19-Apr-22 52,000,000 52,012,698 3.37
Medbank FRN 04-May-22 19,000,000 19,005,060 1.23
Nedbank FRN 23-May-22 13,000,000 13,000,000 0.84
Wedbank FRN 24-May-22 12,000,000 12,000,000 0.78
Wedbank FRN 10-Jun-22 3,000,000 3.001.221 0.19
Total Variable Rate NCDs 205,075,158 13.29
Discounted Debt
South Africa
South African T-Bill 0% 06-Apr-22 16,430,000 16,420,170 1.07
South African T-Bill 0% 13-Apr-22 42,810,000 42,749,097 277
South African T-Bill 0% 28-Apr-22 16,260,000 16,205,477 1.05
South African T-Bill (3 04-May-22 20,340,000 20,256,613 1.31
South African T-Bill 0% 11-May-22 36.810.000 36,628,327 2.37
South African T-Bill 0% 18-May-22 23,160,000 23,032,863 1.49
South African T-Bill 0% 25-May-22 33,470,000 35.247.445 128
South African T-Bill 0% 01-Jun-22 15,850,000 15,737,453 1.02
South African T-Rill 0% 08-Jun-22 17,020,000 16,868,183 1.09
South African T-Bill 0% 15-Jun-22 2,230,000 2,210,152 0.14
South African T-Bill 0% 29-Jun-22 22,930,000 22,679.292 1.47
Youth African T-Bill 0% 06-Jul-22 50,310,000 49,709,528 323
South African T-Bill 0% 13-Jul-22 : 39,340,000 318,314 469 2.52
South African T-Bill 0% 27-Jul-22 18,970.000 18,688,041 1.21
South African T-Bill 0% 17-Aug-22 12,740,000 12,506,337 0.81
Total Discounted Debt 367,753,449 23.83
Coupon interest receivable 5.829,470 0.38
Financial assets at FW¥TFL 1,218.744.406 78.99

38
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)
As at 31" March 2022

Conl inued)
Fair

Mominal Value “a of
Depaosits (less than 2 months) Holding TAR NAY
South Africa
Call Account Shinsei Absa Bank 2,200,000 2,200,000 0.14
Call Account Shinsei HSBC Bank 279,000,000 279,000,000 18.08
Call Account Shinsei [nvesiec Bank 22,600,000 22,600,000 1.47
Call Aecount Shinsei Standard Bank 2.000.000 2,000,000 0.13
FDOZAR SAN 4.2% 07-Apr-22 30,000,000 30,000,000 1.94

Total Deposits (less than 3 menths) 335,800,000 21.76
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2023
d e
a 1,553,751,466.51 12,445,549
b 3,670,638.69 29,402
o 1,550,080,827.82 12,416,147
155,008,006,163
0.01 0.0801
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600 3,540 2023
1,059,000 600

15
50

142/260



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
uTl
Praveen Jagwani
Mark Tennant
Tan Woon Hum
uTl
Imtaiyazur Rahman
24
2023
802
998 958
10 4,449
UCITS
1,472 4,176
4,896
69 189
2023 UFJ 140.97
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131

23 103

2023 31
105.90
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uTl
2023 31
2023 2022
) ) )  C )

59,114 6,260 34,650 3,669
13,181,427 1,395,913 6,604,425 699,409
167,937 17,785 157,990 16,731
13,408,478 1,419,958 6,797,065 719,809
5,487,934 581,172 6,334,928 670,869
604,383 64,004 550,142 58,260
3,454,104 365,790 9,458,048 1,001,607
9,546,421 1,010,966 16,343,118 1,730,736
22,954,899 2,430,924 23,140,183 2,450,545
10 6,000,000 635,400 6,000,000 635,400
9,879,477 1,046,237 9,725,644 1,029,946
478,798 50,705 318,698 33,750
16,358,275 1,732,341 16,044,342 1,699,096
11 987,862 104,615 929,352 98,418
11 3,723,278 394,295 3,873,151 410,167
13 767,237 81,250 1,130,508 119,721
13 379,845 40,226 553,714 58,638
13 326,711 34,599 251,520 26,636

12 32,149 3,405
379,542 40,193 357,596 37,869
5,608,762 593,968 6,166,489 653,031
6,596,624 698,582 7,095,841 751,450
22,954,899 2,430,924 23,140,183 2,450,545
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2023 2022
(

) C ) )  C )
14 22,161,493 2,346,902 22,592,950 2,392,593
(2,031,604) (215,147) 208,660 22,097
20,129,889 2,131,755 22,801,610 2,414,690
15 (5,213,896) (552,152) (4,685,920)  (496,239)
4 (147,741)  (15,646) (143,571)  (15,204)
16 (14,286,946) (1,512,988) (15,012,078) (1,589,779)
(19,648,583) (2,080, 785) (19,841,569) (2,101,222)
481,306 50,970 2,960,041 313,468
17 (327,473)  (34,679) (374,097)  (39,617)

153,833 16,291 2,585,944 273,851
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UTl
2023 31
) C ) )  C )
2021 6,000,000 635,400 7,139,700 756,094
2,585,944 273,851
2,585,944 273,851
2022 31 6,000,000 635,400 9,725,644 1,029,946
2022 6,000,000 635,400 9,725,644 1,029,946
153,833 16,291
153,833 16,291
2023 31 6,000,000 635,400 9,879,477 1,046,237
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( (

) C ) ) (D)
2021 187,451 19,851 13,327,151 1,411,345
2,585,944 273,851
2,585,944 273,851
131,247 13,899 131,247 13,899
131,247 13,899 131,247 13,899
2022 31 318,698 33,750 16,044,342 1,699,096
2022 318,698 33,750 16,044,342 1,699,096
153,833 16,291
153,833 16,291
160,100 16,955 160,100 16,955
160,100 16,955 160,100 16,955

2023 31 478,798 50,705 16,358,275 1,732,341

148/260



UTl

2023

EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31
2023 2022
(
)  C ) ) C )
481,306 50,970 2,960,041 313,468
4 147,741 15,646 143,571 15,204
2,454 260 2,586 274
(549) (58) (2,312) (245)
160,100 16,955 131,247 13,899
2,031,604 215,147 (208,660)  (22,097)
2,822,656 298,919 3,026,473 320,503
846,994 89,697 (2,374,681) (251,479)
(54,241)  (5,744) (121,741)  (12,892)
(91,363)  (9,675) 1,390,069 147,208
(461,951)  (48,921) 844,013 89,381
(106,696)  (11,299)
3,062,095 324,276 2,657,437 281,423
(315,472)  (33,408) (100,306)  (10,622)
549 58 2,312 245
2,747,172 290,926 2,559,443 271,045
(13,612)  (1,442) (23,790)  (2,519)
(8,414,673) (891,114)
(193,933)  (20,538) (183,843)  (19,469)
(8,622,218) (913,093) (207,633)  (21,988)
12 (128,898)  (13,650) (128,898)  (13,650)
(128,898)  (13,650) (128,898)  (13,650)
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(6,003,944) (635,818) 2,222,912 235,406
9,458,048 1,001,607 7,235,136 766,201
3,454,104 365,790 9,458,048 1,001,607
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uTl
2023 31
2023 19
uTlI 2006
11 15
048617 0802 3 Raffles Place,

#0802, Bharat Building, Singapore 048617

uTl
uTl
uTl AMC
2.1
FRS
2.5
2.2
2.3
2.4
FRS
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FRS
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3.2
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FRS 116 2021
FRS 16

FRS 37

2018 2020 FRS

30
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FVTPL

FVOCI
FVOCI FVTPL

FVTPL

FVOCI

FVTPL FVOCI
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FVOCI

0Cl

FVTPL

FVOCI FVTPL
FVOCI FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL
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FVTPL
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FVOCI
oClI
0ClI
FVOCI
oClI
FVTPL
FVTPL FVTPL

FVTPL
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FRS 12
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3.7

ECL

12 ECL 12 12
ECL
ECL
ECL
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ECL
ECL

FGC
ECL 12 ECL

ECL

ECL

12 ECL

30

90

FGC

ECL

ECL
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ECL
ECL
FVOCI
90
ECL

FVOCI ocClI

FGC FGC
CGU

ocly
oely
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CGU

CGU
CGU

CGU CGU
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ESOP uTl

ESOP

uTl AMC

2022 UTI

uTl AMC

uTl AmMC

3.11

3.12
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EIR

3.13

JGI

3.14

0Cl1

FRS 37
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3.15

3.16
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2022
FRS
FRS 117 FRS 117
FRS
FRS FRS
FRS

FRS 12
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2023

2021
2022
2022

2023

2023

2021
2022
2023

31

31

31

31

31
31
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34,170 128,725 211,806 247,184 621,885
2,066 21,724 23,790
34,170 130,791 233,530 247,184 645,675
744 12,868 158,593 172,205
(160) (480) (1,899)  (247,184) (249,723)
34,010 131,055 244,499 158,593 568,157
32,653 120,288 190,921 123,592 467,454
1,125 3,856 14,998 123,592 143,571
33,778 124,144 205,919 247,184 611,025
(160) (480) (1,899)  (247,184) (249,723)
392 3,958 16,447 126,944 147,741
34,010 127,622 220,467 126,944 509,043
1,517 8,437 20,885 123,592 154,431
392 6,647 27,611 34,650
3,433 24,032 31,649 59,114
2023 2022
13,181,427 6,604,425
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2023 2022
167,937 157,990

2023 2022
13 5,169,988 5,914,536
317,946 420,392
5,487,934 6,334,928

20

2023 2022
322,199 212,652
13,837 5,400
58,388 57,709
206,316 265,738
3,643 8,341
302
604,383 550,142

20
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2023 2022
1,387,863
3,454,104 8,070,185
3,454,104 9,458,048
0.15 2023 31
20
2023 2022

600 6,000,000 600 6,000,000
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2023 2022
987,862 929,352
960,000 900,000
111,561 51,253

2,055,621 2,459,148
596,096 462,750
4,711,140 4,802,503
30
20
12
2023
2023 2022
126,312
158,593
2,454 2,586
(128,898) (128,898)
32,149
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2023 2022
2,454 2,586
2023 2022
128,898 128,898
2021 126,312 126,312
(128,898) (128,898)
(128,898) (128,898)
2,586 2,586
2,586 2,586
2022 31
2022
(128,898) (128,898)
(128,898) (128,898)
158,593 158,593
2,454 2,454
161,047 161,047
2023 31 32,149 32,149

20
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13

2023 31

2023 2022
16,490,148 17,093,285
1,659,456 1,435,193
1,234,884 1,257,767
703,696 706,029
108 173
3,947,738 4,185,757

1,900,669 2,071,448
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31

2023 2022

343,623 338,212
585,815 396,577
4,181,703 5,119,509
58,845 60,238
767,237 1,130,508
379,845 553,714
326,711 251,520

2023 2022

1,108,050 1,013,729
17,475 17,475
110,070 96,870
1,235,595 1,128,074
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2023 2022
703,696 706,029
18,127,058 18,873,051

3,350

1,659,456 1,435,194
549 2,312
430,875 280,187
1,625 38,410
1,234,884 1,257,767

22,161,493 22,592,950
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2019 15 uTl
CoviD-19
JSS
JGI
JSS
JGI 2020 2023
15
2023 2022
4,243,133 3,966,906
19 160,100 131,247
19 39,684
207,244 231,426
563,735 356,341

5,213,896 4,685,920
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2023 2022
12,534,767 13,268,381
160,271 75,342
92,687 91,959
399,315 452,234
63,321 57,131
136,298 128,584
287,711 261,335
102,258 47,539
222,192 287,245
142,433 117,674
68,782 67,798
(218,364) (71,108)
2,454 2,586
292,821 225,378

14,286,946 15,012,078
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2022

379,542
(42,122)
(9,947)

357,595
(14,283)
30,785

327,473

374,097

481,306

2,960,041

17 2022 17 81,822

432,748
(84,886)
(47,828)
(9,947)
(2,314)
(42,122)

503,207

53,831

(120,921)

(74,074)
30,785

(4,481)

(14,283)
33

327,473

374,097

2021 29 2026 28
FSI FSI
43Q
10

18
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19

uTl 2007 UTI AMC

ESOP

ESOP
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ESOP ESOP ESOP
2019 12 16 2021 28 2022 13
728 923 816.05
728 923 816.05
6.33% 5.51% 6.91%
17 21
4.17 4.14
39.78% 30.44% 35.66%
276 260 256.55
2023 2022
89,490 53,386
57,149 36,104
(1,244)
31 145,395 89,490
31 12,035 35,590
UTl AMC
2022 UTI
2023 31 39,684 2022

20
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94.21 2022 93.36
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2023 31

2022 1,387,863
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13,499,070 2022 13,118,597
177,519
2022 177,573
2022
2023 FVTPL
263,629 2022 132,089
21
2023 2022 31
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LTI International (Singapore) Private Linited
Financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of financial position

As at 31 March 2023
Note 2023 2022
5% 58
Non-current assets J
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use asset 4 59,114 34,650
Investment scourities 5 13,181,427 6,604,425
Deferred tax asscl f 167,937 157,950
13,408478 6,797,065

Current assets
Trade debtors 7 5487934 6,334,928
Other assets A 604,383 50,142
Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,454,104 9,458,048

9,546,421 16,343,118
Total assets 22,954 899 23,140,183
Equity
Share capital 10 6,000,000 6,000,000
Retained earnings 9,879,477 9,725,644
Other reserves 478,798 18,698
Total equity 16,358,275 16,044,342
Non-current liability
Provision for long-term incentives 11 937,862 929,352
Current liabilities
Ageruals and other liabilities 11 3,723,278 3,873,151
Amounts owing to holding company 13 767,237 1,130,508
Amounts owing to ultimate bolding company 13 379,845 553,714
Amounts owing lo related company 13 326,711 251,520
Lease liability 12 32,149 =
Income tax payable 379,542 157,596

5,608,762 6,166,489
Total lizbilities 6,590,024 7,095,841
Total equity and liabilities 22.954 899 23,140,183

The sccompanyving notws form en integral part ol these financial statements,

Fs1
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UTI Intersational (Singapore) Private Limited
Financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2023

Note 2023 2022
88 S8

Revenue . 14 22,161,493 22,592,950
Unrealised loss/{gains) on financial assels at

[air value threugh profit or loss (2.031.604) 208,660
Net operating income 20,129,839 22,801,610
Expenses
Salarics and other related expenses 15 (5,213,896)  (4,085,920)
Diepreciation 4 (147,741) (143,571)
Other operating expenses 16 (14.286,946) (15.012,078)
Total expenses (19.648.583)  (19,841.569)
Profit before taxation 481,306 2,960,041
Tax expense 17 (327.473) (374.097)
Total comprehensive income for the year 153.833 2.585.944

The accompenying nates form an integral part of these financial statements.

F32
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UTT Internatinal (Singepore) Privage Linvited

Financlal stalemenic
Year ended 31 Marek 2023
Statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 March 2023
Share Retained Other
capital earnings reserves Total
5§ 55 55 55
At 1 Apnl 2021 6,000,000 7.139,700 187451  13,327.131

[Tmal comprehensive income
for the year

Profit for the year - 2585544 - 2,585,944
Total comprehensive income
for the vear = 2,585,944 - 2585944

Transactions with owners,
recorded direetly in
equity

Contributions by and
distributions to owners

Share options granted during
the vear

Total transactions with
OWners

At 3] March 2022

At 1 April 2022

- = 131,247 131,247

131,247 131,247

6,000,000 9,725,644 318,608 16,044,342

6,000,000 0,725,644 318,698 16044342

Total comprehensive income

for the vear
Igmﬁ: for the vear

- 153,833 - 153.833

Total comprehensive income
for the yvear

Transactions with owners,
recorded directly in
equity

Contributions by and
distributions to owners

Share options granted during
the yecar

Total transactions with
OWIers

At 31 March 2023

- 153,833 = 153,833

- - 160,100 160,100

160.100 160,100

6.000,000  9.879.477 478,798  16,358.273

The secompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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LT Imterativeal (Singgpoere) Private Limited
Financlal statemenis

Statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 March 2023

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 4

Interest expense on lease liabiliny

Interest income on fixed deposits

Equity-settled emplovee stock options

Unrealised loss/{gains) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Operating cash flows before Wurls,in'g capital changes
Changes in operating assels and lighilities:
{Increase)/decrease in:
Trade debtars
(ther assets
{Decrease)increase in:
Accruals and other liabilities
Amounls owing to related companies
Deferred income
Cash fluws from operating activities
Income tax paid
Interest income on fixed deposits
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investment security

Dividend income reinvested for purchase of
investment security

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activity
Payment of principal portion of lease liability 12
Net cash flows used in financing activity

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
for the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
(Cash and cash equivalents al end of year 9

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

188/260

Year ended 31 March 2023
2023 022
58 ss
481,306 2,960,041
147,741 143,571
2,454 2,586
(549) (2.312)
160,100 131,247
2,031,604 (208,660}
2,322,636 3,026,473
846,994 (2,374,681)
{34,241) (121,741)
(91,363) 1,390,069
{461,951} 844,013
= (106,696)
3,062,005 2,657,437
(315,472) (100,306)
549 2312
2,747.172 2,550443
(13,612) (23,7900
(8.414,673) -
{193,933) {183,843}
(2,622218) (207,633)
(128.89%) (123.898)
(128 %08} (128 808)
(6,003,944) 2,222912
9,458,048 7,235,136
3.454.104 9,458,048
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UTT Imternationad {(Singapore) Private Limited
it
Year ended 31 March 2023
MNotes to the financial statements

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2023.

Domicile and activities

UTI International (Singapore) Privete Limited (‘the Company”) is a private limited company
incorporated in Singapore on 15 November 2006. The registered office and principal place of
business is 3 Raffles Place, #0802 Bharat Building, Singapore 048617,

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of fund management scrvices. There has
been nio significant change in the naturc of this activity during the financial year.

The immediate holding company is UT] International Limited, incorporated under the laws of

Guernsey, Channel Islands. The ultimate holding company is UT] Asset Management Company
Ltd (“UTI AMC"), a public limited company incorporated under the laws of India.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
in Singapore (‘FRS"). The changes to significant accounting policies are described in note 2.5,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been preparcd on the historical cost basis except as otherwise
described in the notes below.

Funetional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars (*SGD” or ‘S$%), which is the
Company s funcrional currency.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounling ;_mlmms and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these

estimalcs.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Management is of the opinion that there are no critical judgements made in applying the entity’s
accounting policies and no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a sipnificant risk
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year.
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UTT International (Singapore) Private Limited
Finanetal siaremenls
Year erded 31 March 2023

Measurcment of fair valucs

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
valucs. This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for all significant fair value
messurements, including Level 3 fuir values, and reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer.

The valuation ream regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
If third party information, such as broker quolss or pricing servicos, is used to measure fair values,
then the valuation team assesses and documents the cvidence obtained from the third parties 1o
support the conclusion that these valuations mect the requirements of FRS, including the level in
the fair value hierarchy in the valuations should be classified. Significant valuation issues arc
reparted to the Company’s Board of Directors.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses vbservable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair vale hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows:

Lavel I:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2.  inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either dircetly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level3:  inputs for the asset or liability that arc not based on ohservable market data
{unohservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measurc the fair value of an asset or 2 liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in ils entirety in the same level
of the [air value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement
(with Level 3 being the lowest).

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurrcd.

Changes in accounting policies
New standards and amendments

The Company has applied the following FRSs, amendments to and interpretations of FRS for the
first time for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2022:

Amendment to FRS 116: COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
Amendment to FRS 16: Praperty, Plant und Equipment = Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendment 1o FRS 37: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to FRSs 2018 - 2020

The application of these amendments 10 ctandards and interpretations docs not have a material
effect on the financial siatements.
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Financlal statements
Year ouded 37 March 2023

3 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies sct out below have been applied consislently to all periods presented in
{hese financial statoments, except as explained in note 2.5, which addresses changes in accountng

policies.
3.1 Foreign currency
(i) Forcign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currcncies are translated to the functional currency of the Company al
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in
forcign currencies at the reporting date are iranslated t the funectional currency al the exchange
rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference betwesn
amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effcctive
interest and payments during the year, and the amoartised cost in forcien currency ranslated at the
exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are wranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the datc that the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in profit or loss and presented
within finance costs/income.

33 Financial instruments

(i) Recagnition and initial measurement
Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities
Trade debtors and debt investments issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes
a party io the contractual provisions of the instrzment.
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing compenent) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (*FVTPL’), ransaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
orissuc. A trade receivable without a significant finaneing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

(if} Classification and subsequent measurement

Non-derivative linancial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is clussified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI —debt
investment: FVOCI — equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
chanes its business model for managing financial assets, in which casc all affected financial

assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting iod following the change in the
business model.
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UTT International (Singapore) Private Limited
Filrancial statomens
Year ended 31 March 2033

Financial assers af amoriized cost

A financial asset is measured al amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

e itis held within # business model whose objective is to hold asscts 1o collect contreciual cash
flows: and

« its contractual terms give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt investnents at FVOCI

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTI'L:

e itis held within 2 business model whose objective is achicved by both collecting contractual
cash lows and selling financial assets; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Equity investmenss at FVOCT

On initial recognition of an eguity investment that is not held-for-trading, the Company may
irrevocably eleet to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCL This
election is made on an investment-by-investment busis.

Financiol assets at FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC] as deseribed above arc
measured at FEVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irmevocably designate a financial
aseer that otherwise meets the requircments to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCT as at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismalch that would
otherwise arisc.

Financial assets: Business mode] assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

e the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on camning contractual
interest income, maintaining a part:cular interest raie profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of a1y related liabilities or expecied cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the ussets;

e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's
management;

e the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
{hat business model} and how those risks are managed;

s how managers of the business are compensated —e.g. whether compensation is bascd on the
fuir value of the assels managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
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Fingroial staterments
Year eaded 31 March 2023

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and cxpectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of finuncial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition
are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition
of the assets.

Financial asseis that are held-for-trading or arc managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Non-derivative financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defincd as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time
and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as
a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contraciual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asses contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company
considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms thal may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate feamres;
prepavment and extension features; and

terrms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

a & 0 @

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest eriterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount
or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepavment at @n
amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual intercst (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the [air value of the prepayment featurc
is insignificant at initial recognition.

Non-derivative financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subscquently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
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Financinl stalewenis
Your ended 3/ March 2023

Financial assets af amoriised cost

These usscts are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the elfcetive interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losscs. Interest income, foreign exchange pains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derccognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debi investments at FVOCI

These asscts are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, foreign exchange pains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recogniscd in (OC]. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profil or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets arc subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents & recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other niet gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are never reclassified to prafit or loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and
losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilitics at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Directly attributable transaction
cosls are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less directly attributable transaction
costs, They are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Tnterest expense and foreign exchange gains and lossos are recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when:
s the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assel expire; or
e it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows i a transaction in which either
- substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred;
ar
- the Company neither transfers nor relains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assel.

Transferred asscls are not derecognised when the Company enters into u'a.nsar::ians: wherehy it
transfers assels recognised in its statement of financial position, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets.
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Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial lisbility when its contraciual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially differcnt, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair valuc.

On derccognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transfemed or liabilities assumed) 15
recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the stalcment of
financial position when, and only when, the Company currenily has a legally enforceable right to set
off the amounis and it intends either 1o settle them on a nct basis or to realise the asset and settle the
Hability simultanecusly.

) Cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash cguivalents comprisc cash balances and short-term deposits with maturities of three
months or less Srom the date of acquisition that arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
their fair value, and arc used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments.
For the purposc of the statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
that form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included in cash and cash
eguivalents.

(vi) Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares arc classified as equity. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. Income tax relating

10 transaction costs of an cquity transaction is accounted for in accordance with FRS 12.
33 Property, plant and cquipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measurcd at cost, which includes capitalised bomowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes cxpenditure that is dircetly atributable to the acquisition of the asscl. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes:

the cost of materials and dircct labour;
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their
intendod use;

» when the Company has an obligation to remove the asset or restorc the site, an estimate of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located;
and

« capitalised borrowing cosls.

Fs11

195/260



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

UTT International (Singapore} Private Linited
Fingrictal staraments
Yoar ended 31 Marck 2023

Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment. Purchased soltware that is integral
to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and cquipment have different usefial lives, they
arc accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss an disposal of an item of property, plant and cquipment is recognised in profit or
loss.

(ii) Subsequent cosls

The cost of replacing 2 component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced companent is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

{1id) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an assel lcss its residual value. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the
remainder of that asset, that component is depreciated separatcly.

Depreciation is recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant and equipment, unless itis
included in the carrving amount of another asset. Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is recogniscd from the date that the property, plant and equipment are installed and
are ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset 15
completed and ready for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

« Office furniture and equipment 3 years
e Fixtures and fittings 3 years
e Computers 3 vears

Depreciation methods, usclul lives and residual values are revicwed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted if appropriate.

3.4 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether 2 contract is, or contains, # lcase. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,
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As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of 2 contract that conrains 4 lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of itz relative
siand-alone prices. However, for the leascs of property, the Company has elscted not to separate
non-lease componenis and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Company recognises a right-of-usc asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which compriscs the inital amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease paymenis made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of cosls to dismantle and remove the underlying
aseet or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfors ownership of the
underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-usc asset
reflects that the Company will exercise 2 purchase option. In thal case the right-of-use asset will
be depreciated over the useful life ol the underlying assct, which is determined on the same basis
as those of property and eguipment. In addition, the right-of-use assel is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease Liability.

The right-of-usc asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

The Icase liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease paymenis that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company
uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from
various external financing sources and makes cerlain adjustmenis 1o reflect the terms of the lease
and tvpe of the asset leased.

Lease pavments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the [ollowing:

s fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments,

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement daic;
amounts expected Lo be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
the cxercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewsl period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
an extension option, and penaltics for early termination of a lease unless the Company is
reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in futare lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantec, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercisc a
purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.
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When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment iz made 1o the
carrying smount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-usc assets that do not meet the defininion of investment property
in ‘property, plant and equipment and right-of-usc asset’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and
borrowings® in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-usc assets and lease linbilities for leases of

low-value asscts and short-term leases, including IT equipment. The Company recogniscs the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expinse on a straight-line basis over the lease

TEM.
3.7 Tmpairment
(i) Non-derivative financial assets and contract assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised
€osts.

Loss allowances of the Company arc measured on gither of the following bases:

e 12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from default cvents that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or for a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than |2 months); or

o Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expecied
lifc of a financial instrumént or coniract asset.

Simplified approach

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs for all trade. The simplified
approach requircs the loss allowance tw be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

General appraack

The Compeny applies the general approach to provide for ECLs onall other financial instruments
and FGCs. Under the general approach, the loss allowance is measured at an amount wual to 12-
month ECLs at initial recognition.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk of a finaneial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When credit risk has increascd significantly since
initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to fifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assel has inereased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
informarion that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analvsis, based on the Company’s historical
experience and informed credit asscssment and includes forward-looking information.
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If credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition or if the credit quality of the
financial instruments improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs,

The Company assumes that the credit risk on & financial asset has increased significantly ifitis
more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

e the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by
the Company to actions such as realising security (if any 1s held); or
« the financial asset is morc than 90 days past due.

The Company considers a contract assel 1o be in default when the customer is unlikely to pay ils
contractual obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to aclions such
as realising security (if any is held).

The Company considers a FGC to be in default when the deblor of the loan is unlikely to pay its
credit abligations to the ereditor and the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to
actions such as realising security (if any is held).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Company is exposed Lo credit risk.

Measurement of ECls

ECLs are probability-weighicd cstimates of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the differcnce between the cash Nows due to the enlity in
accordance with the contract and the cash Nows that the Company expects 10 receive). ECLs are
discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

Al cach reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
and debt investments at FVOC] are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assct have occurred. ;

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past dug;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
eonsider otherwise,

it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial diffculties.
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UTI Invarnational (Singepore) Private Limited
Financial stalements
Year ended 31 Mareh 2027

Presentation of allowance for ECLS in the statement of financial posttion

Lases allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost and contract assets are deducted
from the gross carrying amount of these assels.

For debt investments at FVOCL, loss allowances are charged to profit or loss and recognised in
OCL

[oss allowances for FGC are recognised as a financial liability to the extent that they exceed the
initial carrying amount of the FGC less the cumulared income recognised.

Write-nfl

The gross carrying amount of & financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
exrent thal there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assels or sources of income that could gencrate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial asscts that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

MNon-financial assels

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial asscts, other than investment properly,
inventories, coniract assets and delerred tax assets, are reviewed at cach reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. 1f any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is cstimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or its related cash-generating umit (*CGU”) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or OGU is the greater of its value inuse and its fair value less
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments ol the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assats that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generatcs cash inflows from continuing use that are largcly independent of the cash inflows of
olher assets or CGUSs.

The Company’s corporaic assets do not generate separalc cash inflows and are utilised by more
than one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs ana reasonable and consistent basis and
tested for impairment as part of the lesting of the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
CGUs are allocuted to reduce the carrving amounts of the assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on
a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses rccognised in prior periods arc assessed @l cach reporting date for any
indications thal the lass has decrcased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been 2 change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the camrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had becn
recognised.
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LT Imternational (Singapore) Private Limited
Fingneial matements
Yoar snded 3§ Marck 2023

Employec benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are
rendered by employees.

Long-term incentives

The net liability for the long-term incentives is the aggregate of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation (derived using a discount rate based on risk free rate) at the end of the reporting
peried.

Employee stock oplions

The Employee Stock Option Scheme (“ESOPs”) provides for the grant of oplions to acquire
equity shares of the ultimate holding company UTI Assct Management Company Limited to its
eligible employees of the subsidiary company. The ESOPs are measured at fair value of the cquity
instruments at the grant datc. The period of vesting and period of excreise are as specified within
the respective schemes.

The fair value of the options is measured using the Black-Scholes valuation method, taking, into
account the terms and conditions on which the options were granted. The calculation takes into
account the weighted average historical share price volatility of the ultimate holding company
relative to that of its competitars so as to predict the share performance. The fair value determined
al the grant date of the equity settled share-based payments is expensed over the vesling period,
hassd on the Company's estimate of equily instruments that will eventually vest, with a
camresponding increase in equity. Subsequent fair value adjustments are not recognised in the
income stalement.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

Phantom share scheme

The Company introduced a cash settled share-based payment plan called the “UTI International
Phantom Share Scheme — 2022 (Phantom Sharcs)” for its eligible employees (subject to certain
cligibility condition) whereby such employces shall receive phantom shares with a certain payoff
linked to the valug of the share price of the ultimate holding company, UT1 AMC. The phantom
shares are measured at an amount linked to the relevant closing share price of UTI AMC at the
grant datc. The period of vesting is as specified within the respective schemes.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the cash scitled share-based payments is expensed
over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of the payolflinked to ke closing share

orice of UTT AMC at that relevant grant date, with 2 corresponding increase in liability. At each
reporting date, the liability is remeasured.
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited
Fingnciul siplementy
Year ended 37 March 2023

3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required w
sartle the obligution and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If il is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to
seitle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 1fthe effect of the time value of maney is material,

visions are discounted using & current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a finance cost.

3.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expeets to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfies » performance
obligation by ransferring a promised good or service to the customer, which is when the costomer
obtains control of the good or service, A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in
time or over time. The amount of revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied
performance oblipation.

Revenue comprises primarily of management fee, marketing fee, advisory fee and business
service support fee. Management fee, marketing fee, advisory fee and business serviee support
fee income are recognised in the financial year in which the services are rendered. The major
revenue i.c. investment management fees the Company is entitled 1o, are calculated based on
predetermined percentages with reference to the Asset Under Management of the respeetive
funds. As a result, investment management fee represents variable consideration and is recognised
once it is highly probable that it will not be subjeet to significant reversal and is allocated to the
distinct service periods. Management [ces are recognised over timg in the period in which the
services are rendered as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefils provided
by the Company.

Interest income is recognised using the EIR method.
3.13 Government grants
Government grnts are recognised as a receivable when there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complicd with. When the prant relates
to an cxpense item, it is recognised as income on a sysiomatic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which il is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates o an
asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.
During the vear, the Company received grants in relation to the Jobs Growth Incentive (*JGI°).
3.14 Income tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Cument tax and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss cxcept to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

The Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income laxes, including
uncertain tax lreatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for
them under FRS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited
Financlal stalenenis
Year ended 31 Murch 2023

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively cnacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
pavable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable 15 the best
cstimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to
income taxes, if any. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax ssscts and liabilities are offset only if ecrtain criteria are met.

Dreferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for lemporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss,

Temporary differences in relation to a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for a specific lease
arc regarded as a net package (the lease) for the purpose of recognising deforred tax.

The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, 10 recover or scttle the carrying amount of its
assets and lizbilities. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
lemporary differences when they reversc, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date, and reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if
any.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offiet il there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax lishilities and assets, and they relatc to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences.  If the amount of taxable temporary differences is
insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for
reversals of existing temporary differences, arc considered, based on (he business plans for the
Company. Deferred tax assets are revicwed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extcnl
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are
reversed when the probability of future taxable profils improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used,
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LTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Financial statemenis
Year ended 31 March 2023
Related party lransactions
A related party is defined as follows:
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that

(b)

person:

(i) Has control or joint control over the Company:

(ii) Has significant influence over the Company; or

(ii1) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of 2 parent of the
Company.

An entily is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related 1o the others);

{ii) One entity is an associatc or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is 2 member);

(iii} Doth entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associalc of the
third cotity;

{v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers arc also related to the Company;

{vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); or

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is 1 member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

New standards and interpretations not adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards arc cffective for anmual periods
beginning after 1 April 2022 and earlier application is permitted. However, the Company has not
early adopted the new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements.

The following amendments to FRSs are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

FRS 117 [nsurance Coniracts and Amendments to FRS 117 fnsurance Contracty
Amendments to FRS 12 Classification of Linkilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to FRS | and FRS Practice Statement 2: Diselosure (o Accounting Policies
Amendments to FRS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendment to FRS 12: Deferred Tux related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
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UTT Imternatianal (Ningapore) Privaie Limited

Financial sgrements
Year ended 31 March 2023
Property, plant and equipment
ffice
furniture
and Fixtures Right-of-
equipment and fittings Compulers usc asset Total
35 55 85 55 S5
Cost
At 1 April 2021 34,170 128,725 211,806 247,184 621,885
Additions - 2,066 21,724 - 23,790
At 31 March 2022 34,170 130,791 233,530 247,184 645,675
Additions - T44 12 868 158,503 172,205
Disposal (160) (480) (1,899) (247,184) (249.713)
At 31 March 2023 34.010 131,055 244 490 158,593 568,157
Accumulated depreciation
At l April 2021 32,653 120,288 190,921 123,592 467,454
Charge for 2022 1,125 1856 14,598 123,592 143,571
At 31 March 2022 33,778 124,144 205,919 247,184 611,025
Disposal {1600 {4800 (1,599) (247.184) (249.723)
Charge for 2023 392 3,958 16,447 126,944 147,741
A1 31 March 2023 34,010 127,622 220467 126,944 500,043
Met book value
At 1 Aprl 2021 1,517 2.437 20,8835 123,592 154,431
At 31 March 2022 392 6,647 27611 - 34,650
Al 31 March 2023 - 3.433 24,032 31.649 59,114
Investment securitics
2023 2022
55 S5
Al fair value through profit or loss
- Quoted investment securities 13,181,427 6604425
Deferred tax asset
2023 2022
55 S5
Provision for long-lerm incentives 167,937 157,990
Fs21
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LTI Internatipnal (Singepore) Private Linined
Financiol sialemenis
Yeur ended 31 Mavch 2023

Trade debtors
MNote 2023 2022
=8 S5
Receivable from related companies 13 5,169,988 5,914,536
Receivable from third parties 317,946 420,392

5.487,934 6,334,028

Trade debtors are trade-related, unsccured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are o
be settled in cash.

The Company’s exposures to credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 20,

Other assets

2023 2022

55 58
Prepayments ' 322,199 212,652
Sundry deblors 13,837 5400
Deposits 58,388 57,709
Recoverable amounts 206,316 265,738
GST receivable 3,643 8,341
Accrued interest receivable - 302

604,383 550,142

The Company’s exposures to credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 20.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash and bank balances and fixed deposits.

2023 2022
53 55
Fixed deposils - 1,387,863
Cash and bank balances 3,434,104 8,070,185

3,454,104 9,458,048

In 2022, fixed deposits earned interest at 0.15% per anoum. As at 31 March 2023, there were nil
fixed deposits

The Company’s exposures to eredit and currency risks are disclosed in note 20.
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UTT Fnsernational (Singapore) Private Limited

Firgrcigl siciemenis
Year ended 3§ March 2023
Share capital
i 2023 2022
MNo. of shares 5% MNo. of shares 55
Fssued and fully patd:
At beginning and end of year &) 6,000,000 G010 6,000,000

All shares rank equally with regard to the Companys residual assets. All issued shares are fully
paid, with no par value.

Ordinary shares
The holders of ordinary shares arc entitled o receive dividends as declared from time to tme, and

are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All rights attached to the
Company’s shares held by the Company are suspended until those shares are reissued.

Accruals and other liabilitics

2023 2022
55 S5
Provision for long-term incenlives  © 987,862 929,352
Provision for bonus 960,000 900,000
Accrued staff costs 111,561 51,253
Agcrued management fee expenses 2,055,621 2,459,143
Others 506,096 462,750

4,711,140 4,802,503

Accruals and other payables are unsecured, interest-free and typically payable within 30 days.
Provision for bonuses is typically payable within 60 days.

Aside from the provision for long-term incentives, all other aceruals and other liabililics are
Current.

[nformation about the Company’s exposure to foreign currency and liquidity risk is included in
note 20.

Lease liability

Leases as lessee

The Company leases office building. The leases run for & period of 2 years, with an option w0
terminate the lease agrecment after the expiration of the first twelve (12) months of the term,
giving the lessor not less than three (3) months’ notice. The last day of leasing will be 30 June
2023,

Infermation about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below.
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U'TT Tntermatipnal (Singapore) Private Limited

Firancial sieiements
Yoor ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
S8 58
- 126,312
158,593 -
2454 2,586
(128,898) {128,898}
32,149 P
2023 2022
8% 88
2,454 2,586
2023 2022
85 55
128,898 128,898

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Leasc
liabilities Tuotal
5% 55
Balance at 1 April 2021 126,312 126312
Changes from financing cash flows
Payment of lease liabilities (128,898) (128.598)
Total changes from financing cash flows (1248.598) {128,898
Other changes
Intercst cxpense 2,586 2,586
[Total other changes 2,586 2.586
Balance at 31 March 2022 = =
Balance at 1 April 2022 - -
Changes from financing cash flows
Payment of lease Labilitics (128.898) (128,898 |
Total changes from financing cash flows {128.898) {128,898)
Other changes
MNew [eass 158,593 158,593
[nterest expense 2,454 2,454
Total other changes 161,047 161,047
Balance at 31 March 2023 32,149 32,149
F324
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Fingncig! statements
Yoar snded 31 March 2022

Information about the Company’s exposure to foreign currency and liquidity risk is included in
note 20.

Related party transactions

For the financial vear cnded 31 March 2023, the related party transactions were as follows:

2023 2022
53 55
Revenue '
Management and investor service fee from other related
companies 16,490,148 17,093,285
Business support service fee from ultimate holding
company 1,659,456 1,435,193
Intra-group cost recharge to holding company 1,234.884 1,257,767
Marketing fees from other related companies 703,696 706,029
Interest income on fixed deposit with related financial
institution 108 173
2023 2022
Ss 88
Expenses
Management fee expenses:
Holding company 3,947,738 4,185,757
Ultimate holding company 1,900,669 2071448

Al 31 March balances resulting from relatod party transactions were as follows:

2023 2022
55 55
Assers
Trade debtors owing from:
Holding company 343,623 338,212
Dltimate holding company 585,815 396,577
Funds under management 4 181,703 5,119,509
Other related companies 58,845 60,238
Liahilities
Amounts owing to:
Holding company 767,237 1,130,508
Ultimatc holding company 379,845 553,714
Oither related companies 326,711 251,520

Trade debtors owing from and amounts owing to related companies are trade-related, unsecured,
non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are to be scttled in cash.
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Financlal sratemenls
Yeur ended 31 March 2023

The Compeny currcnily does not offset balances with related partics and trade debtors owing from
and amounts owing to related companies are presented at gross in the statement of financial
position.

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel compensalion

In addition 1o their salaries, the Company also provides non-cash benefits to directors and
executive officers.

Key managcment persornel compensation comprised:

2023 2022
5% 55
Short-term employee benefits 1,108,050 1,013,729
Post-employment benefits (including CPF) 17,475 17,475
Other long-term benefits 110,070 96,870

1235505 1,128,074

Revenue
2023 2022
55 55

Marketing fees 703,696 706,029
Managoment fees 18,127,058 18,875,051
Investor service fees 3,350 -
Business support service fees 1,659.456 1,435,194
Interest income on fixed deposits 349 2312
Other income 430,875 2R0,187
Grant income 1,625 38410
Other income - Intra-group recharges 1,234 884 1,257,767

22161493 22,592,950

The following table provides information about the naturc and timing of the satisfaction of
performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and
the relared revenue recognition policies:

Management fees

Nature of goods or services | Manage the funds as per investment objectives & strategies as
defined in the fund prospectus

When revenue is recognised | The company recognised revenue on 2 monthly basis as the |
performance obligation is satisfied over time as the customer
simultancously receives and consumes the benefits provided

Significant payment terms Quarterly payment in arrcars
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Firancial statemonts
Year ended 31 March 2023

Marketing fees

Nature of goods or services |Conduet studies on any specific investor/market scgment,
provide information on emerging investor interests and assist
with interpresation of feedback received from distributors
When revenue is recosnised |The company recognised revenue on a monthly basis as the
performance obligation is satisfied over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

Significant payment terms | Quarlerly payment in arrears

Business support service fees

Nature of goods or services | Creating awareness about the product range outside India,
identify the prospects and eoordinate the sales‘evalvation
process with such prospects and assist with queries raised by
the client

When revenue is recognised | The company recognised revenue on a monthly basis as the
performance obligation is satisficd over tme as the customer
simullancously reecives and consumes the benefits provided

Significant payment terms Qruarterly payment in ArTcars

On 15 Scpicmber 2019, the Company signed an agreement with its immediate holding company,
UTI International Limited in consideration for the intra-group support services rendered by the
Company. The Company recharges a portion of ils expenses to its immediate holding company,
atarm’s length using the transactional net margin method.

The government grants are non-refundable rebates from government relating to rental and staff
related expenses incurred by the Company in the course of business. The Company received
several government grants as part of the COVID-19 Government Relief Measures. The previous
year's grants include the Jobs Support Scheme (“*155”) and Property Tax Rebate. During the year,
the Company received the Jobs Growth Incentive (*JGI™). The Company has recognised these
govermnmenlt grants as grant income.

In relation to the JSS grant, the stated purpose of the grant is to provide wage support to entities

to retain local employees during the period of economic uncertrinty. For JGI grant, the stated
purpose is to support employvers to expand local hiring from September 2020 to March 2023.

Salaries and other related expenses

Note 2023 2022
55 55
Salaries and bonuses 4,243,133 3,966,906
Equitv-settled Employee stock aptions 19 160,100 131,247
Cash-scttled share based payments 19 39,684 =
CPF contributions 207,244 231,426
Oither staff related costs 563.735 356,341

5.213,896 4685520
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Other operating expenscs

Management fee expenses
Travel and entertainment
Pental expenscs

Legal and professional fees
Communication expense
Insurance cXponsc
Operational expenses
Repair and maintenance
Service administration fess
Business promotion expenses
Directors’ fees

Foreign exchange pains
Interest on lease liability
Others

Tax expense
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OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)

Tax expense atiributable to profit is made up of:

- Current income tax

- Qver provision in respect of previous years
- Deferred income tax on temporary differcoees

Profit before taxation

Tax expense calculated at tax rate of 17% (2022: 17%)

Adjustments:

Expenses not deductible for tax purpuses

[ncome not subject to taxation

Effect of partial tax cxemption, tax relief and tax

rebare

Deferred income tax on temporary differcnces

Benefits from previously unrccogni

capital allowances

sed tax losses and

Cwverprovision in respect of previous years

Others

Tax expense recognised in profit or luss
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UTT Fnternativnal (Singapore) Privete Limited

Firaneial siotements

Year ended 37 Murch 2023
2023 2022
S8 55
12,534,767 13,268,381
160,271 73,342
92,687 91,959
399315 452,234
63,321 57,131
136,298 128,584
287,711 261,335
102,258 47,539
222,192 287,245
142,433 117.674
68,782 67,798
(218.364) (71,108)
2,454 2,586
292,821 225,378
14,286,946 15,012,078
2023 2022
ss 85
379,542 357,595
{42,122) (14,283)
(9,247) 30,783
327.473 374,097
481,306 2,960,041
81,822 503,207
432,748 53,831
(84,%80) {120,921)
(47,828) (74,074)
(9,947) 30,783
(2,314 (4,481)
(42,122) (14,283)
- Ek]
327473 374,097
F528
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LT Internationad (Singapore) Private Limited
Financial siatements
Year ended 31 Marck 2023

The Company was granted the Financial Sector Incenmtive Award (Fund Management or
Tnvestment Advisory Services) (“FSI™), effective from 29 April 2021 to 28 April 2026. Under
the FST, the Company is entitled to a concessionary rate of tax of 10% on qualifying transactions
under the provision of Concessionary Rate of Tax for Financial Sector Incentive Companies in
section 43Q of the Income Tax Act 1%47.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Company’s principal financial instruments are cash and short-term deposits, trade and sundry
debtors, amounts owing to related companies, and accruals and other lisbilitics.

The carrying amounts of these financial instruments are reasonable approximation of fair values
duoe to their short-term nature.,

Fair value hierarchy

The Company categoriscs [air value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is dependent
on the valuation inpuls used as follows:

Level 11 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that arc observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indircatly (i.c. derived from prices).

Level 3: inpuls for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Fair value measurements that use inputs of diffierent hicrarchy levels are categorised in its entrety
in the same level of the fair value hivrarchy as the lowsst level input that is significant 1o the entire
measuremant.

Investment securiiies

Fair valus is determined directly by reference to their published market price or broker quotes at
the end of the reporting periods without factoring in transaction costs (Level 1).

Share-based payment transactions

The ultimate holding company UTIl Asset Management Company Limited introduced an
Employee Stock Option Scheme (“ESOP™) called the “UTI AMC Employee Stock Option
Scheme - 20077, Eligible employees of the Company were granted the options.

Under the ESOP scheme, stock options of the ultimate holding company have been granted to the
¢ligible emplovees of the Company. Each option entitles the holder to apply for and be allotted
Equity Shares granicd by the ultimate holding company, at the exercise price during the exercise
peniod.

The vesting ol an option shall commence from the date of grant and shall not be earlier than one
vear from the date of grant of the option, or as may be determined by the ultimate holding

company's Board of the Compensation Commiittee, betwesn three to four years from the date of
grant of the oplion.

F329
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Employee stock option scheme (Equity seiiled)

Particulars ESOP ESOP ESOP
Date of Grant 16 December 2019 28 July 2021 13 September 2022
Price of Underlving Stock INR 728 TNR 923 | NR 816,05
Exercise / Strike Price (in TVR) | INR 728 | INR. 923 INR 516,05

. The fair value of the options grunled was estimated on the dare of grant using the Black Schales Model
with the following assumptioas:

Risk Free Interes: Rete 6.33% 5.51% 6.91%
Expected Dividend IMR. 5 per share INR 17 per share | INR 21 per share
Expected Life (years) 4 Years {mid - way 4.17 vears 4,14 years
between option vesting
and expliry)
Expected Volanlity 30.78% 30.44% 35.66%
| Weighted Average Fair Value of | INR 276 INR 260 INR 256.55
Ciptions | |

The information covering stock options granted, exercised, forfeited and outstanding at the year
end is as follows:

2023 2022

No. of shares No. of shares
Outstanding as at 1 April £9,490 53,386
Granted during the year 57.149 36,104
Exercised during the year = =
Forfeited during the ycar (1,244} -
Lapsed/expired during the year s =
Outstanding as at 31 March 145,395 89,490
Exercisable as a1 31 March 12,035 35,590

Phantom share scheme (Cash-settled)
The Company introduced a cash settled share-based payment plan called the “UTI International
Phantom Share Scheme — 2022 (Phantom Shares) for its eligible employess whereby such

employees phantom shares with 2 certain payoff linked to the value of the share price of the
ultimate holding company, UTI AMC.

As of 31 March 2023, the vutstanding liability in connection with this award amounted to 539,684
{2022: nil as the Phantom Share Scheme was not in existence).

FS30
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UTT International {Singapore) Private Limited
Eingncial statements
Year snded 37 March 2023

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

e credit nsk
s liquidity risk
= Tmnarketnsk

This note presents information about.the Company’s exposure Lo cach of the above risks, the
Company’s objcctives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Company’s management of capital.

Risk manapement framework

The Roard of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. Management is rcsponsible for devcloping and
monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. Management reports regularly to the Board
of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established 10 identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence
to limits. Risk management policies and systems arc reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop 2 disciplined and constructive conirol
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company’s Board of Directors oversces how management monitors compliance with the
Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequasy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial inswuments should a
counterparty default on its obligations. The Company’s exposure 1o credit risk arises primarily
from trade and other debtors. For other financiul assets (including cash and cash equivalents), the
Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties. At
the end of the reporting period, 94.21% (2022: 93.36%) of the trade debtors were due from related
parties.

Fxposure to credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s maximunm exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the balance sheet.

FS31

215/260



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

L'TT Tnternational (Singapore) Private Limited
Financial tiatements

Year ended 31 Marck 2023

Financial assets ihat are neither past due nor impaired

Trade debtors and other assets that are neither past due nor impaired are with credit worthy debiors
with good payment record with the Company. The Company derives its main source of revenue
from providing fund management services to its affiliates. Exposure to credit risk ariging from
related party transactions is minimal as these affiliaics arc of good credit standing. Cash is placed
only with major intemational bank.

Finaneip! assets that are either past due or impaired

There is no financial asset that is either past due or impaired, or would be otherwise past due and
not impaired as at 31 March 2023.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Company’s policy on liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient cash and the
availability of funding. Cash balances and forccast cash movements arc reviewed on a regular
basis, bank reconciliations are prepared and reviewed daily and management accounts are
prepared and reviewed monthly to ensure that the Company maintains adequate working capital.
The Company”s financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature which mitigates the risk of
default on financial obligations. At the end of the reporting period, all of the Company”s financial
liabilities will mature in less than one year based on the carrying amount reflected in the financial
statements.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rales.

The Company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s interest-bearing assels arc cash deposils placed with banks
of §Snil (2022: $§1,387.863). The Company’s policy is to maximise the returns on these interest-
bearing assets. The Company does not have any borrwings.

Foreign currency risk

The Company has transactional cumency exposures ansing mainly from :ntercompany
receivables and distribution fees payable, which are denominated in currency otuer than SGD.
The foreign currency in which these receivables are denominated is mainly United States dollars
(“USD" or “USS™).

As at end of the reporting year, the balance denominated in USD amounted to US513.499,070
(2022; US$13,118,597). With all other variables held constant, a 1% strengthening of USD

against SGD would result in an increase in profit before taxation of approximately $5177,519
(2022: §5177,573).

F832
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UTT International (Singapers) Private Limited
Financlal stalements
Fear ended 31 March 2023

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial
nstruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Company i5 exposed to equity
price risk arising from its investment securities.

The Company’s objective is to manage investmenl returns and price risk using a mix of
investment grade shares with steady dividend yicld and non-investment grade shares with higher
violatility.

Sensitivity analysis_for price risk

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the investment securities had been 2% (2022
2%) higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax for 2023
would have been S8263.629 (2022: S§$132,089) higher/lower, arising as a result of an
increase/decrease in the fair value of investment securities classified as FVPTL.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the Company’s
ahility to continuc as a going concern 5o that it can continue to provide investment advisory
cervices to affiliates. The Company’s management monitor the capital structure and make
adjustments 1o it as needed. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, management
would maintain low expenses/costs and focus on new business opportunitics.

The Company has obligations to maintain & minimum based capital arising from its holding of 2
capital markets service licence in Singapore. There was no change in the capital management
objeetives, policies and process during the financial year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

FS833

217/260



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

218/260



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

219/260



G A S

G.A.S.

2023

EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Cayman Limited

48 6,767

2001 10

Ninety One Guernsey Limited

2023 20 3,624
2023 31 UFJ 181.20
8509
uTl
2008 11 17
SA
SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited)
2023 40 7,248 6,250 97 938
2023 31 UFJ 155.35
1995
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Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, London Branch

2023 3,420

1925

2023 5,122

G A S
G.A.S. Cayman Limited

Ninety One Guernsey Limited

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited)

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, London Branch
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1993

1960

2023 30 12,995

! https://ww.cima.ky/investment-statistics

1993

2020

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
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4,268.29
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CIMA
4.3
100,000
100,000
15
CIMA 4,268.29

365.85
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of South African Rand Money Market Fund (the “ Series Trust”), a series trust
of Horizon Trust, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, the statements of

comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financia statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Series Trust as a 31 March 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International |ndependence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
schedule of investments (unaudited), but does not include the financia statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no readlistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
meateria if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series
Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

KPMG
31st August 2023
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Independent auditors report

Member of the Company
UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Report on the audit of the financia statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financia
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages FS1 to FS33.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 1967 (‘the Act’) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (‘ FRSS) so asto give atrue
and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2023 and of the financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (‘ SSAS ). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (*
ACRA Code’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Other matter
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financia statements on 21 April 2022.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other information is defined
as all information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors report threon.

We have audited all other information prior to the date of this auditors report.

Our opinion on the financia statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised
use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We aso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’sinternal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our
audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KPMG LLP

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

19 April 2023
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